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The Management of Philippine National Construction Corporation is responsible for the
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements for the year ended December 31,
3015, including the additional components therein, in accordance with the prescribed financial
ceporting framework indicated therein. This responsibility includes designing and the
implementing internal controls relevant to the misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies and making accounting estimates that
are reasonable in the circumstances.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements and submits the
#ame to the stockholders or members.

The Commission on Audit (COA), the independent auditors, mandated by the Philippine
Canstitution to audit government-owned or controlled corporations, has examined the financial
statements of the company in accordance with the Philippine Standards on Auditing, and in its
report to the stockholders or members, has expressed its opinion on the fairness of

sresentation upon completion of such examination. M
FiPIDIOT. JAMORA, JR. F. SISON MIRIAM M. PASETES
Chairman of the Board President Acting Treasurer
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

introduction

Tha Philippine National Construction Corporation (PNCC), previously known as the

Construction Development ' Corporation of the Philippines (CDCP),” was. granted the

‘ranchise to construct, operate and maintain the North Luzon Expressway (NLEX), South

uzon Expressway (SLEX) and Metro Manila Expressway by virtue of PD No. 1113 issued

n March ’41 1977, as amended by PD No. 1894 issued on December 22, 1883. The debt-

':'.'J-E:QUII‘_J conversion pursuant to and under the directives of LOI 1295 promulgated on
= Ebruary 23, 1983 gave the Government majority ownership of the Company.

crom 1987 to 2001, PNCC still engaged in some construction business but this resulted in

'oeses. Since 2002, the Company has veered away from active involvement in construction

nparations, and focused more on the operation and maintenance of its tollways. - However,

further financial difficulties prevented PNCC from ﬁperatmg and maintaining its tollways in a

manner required of a public utility. Therefore, starting in 1995, PNCC entered into Joint

‘/enture Agreements (JVAs) that resulted in the division of the Tollways into three portions;

the North Luzon Expressway (NLEX), the South Luzan Expressway (SLEX), and the South
"Metro Manila Skyway (SMMS).

©On February 10, 2005, PNCC tumed over the Dperat:an and Maintenanca (D&M} cf the

Morth Luzon Tollways to the Manila North Tollways Corporation (MNTC), while the O&M for
the South Metro Manila Skyway was turned over to the Sk\_.rway Operation and Maintenance
Corporation on December 31, 2007. -

__ Prior to the expiration of the franchise of PNCC on Apn[ 30, 2007, the Company submitted:
r""" f.:.}fﬁ r==as all the requirements needed for the renewal of the same, but it was not able to .

uired Senate approval.. The Toll Regulatory Board (TRB) issued a Toll Operation
:'J F‘NCC on April 30, 2007 for the O&M of the SLEX and to collect toll fees, in the
r its franchise ‘expiration. The PNCC handed over the O&M of the SLEX to
xp ressway System Inc. on May 2, 2010.

scope and Objectives of Audit

“rnz o204l covered the accounts, transar:huns and nparatmns of PNCC for calendar years .
218 and 2,, 4. It was aimed at expressing an opinion on the financial statements, and.at -

zzierm ning the Company's compliance with pertinent laws, rules and regulations as well as

The ““::Z:..u;.f and economy of operations, -

Financial Highlights

Cocmparative Financial Position
‘1 millien pesos)

: Increase
_ - - : 2015 2014  (Decreasd)
Assels 13,062,830 - 12,428,381 634,449
Liabilities ; 12,975,558 12,575,376 400,182
Equity (Capital Deficiency) 5 87,272 . (146,995) . 234287
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Camparative Results of Operations

(n million pesos) ;
. Increase
_ 2015 . 2014 (Decrease)
Fevenue ) 633,061 214,825 417,525
Ernployee Costs 32,472 © 34,664 (2,192)
Operating expenses 297,086 399,024 " (101,938)
Frofit (loss) before tax ' 303,503 (218,152) : 521,655
Oeferred tax expense 68,325 0 68,325
biet profit (loss) 235178 (218,863) - 453,330

{_ \dependent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements

e renderad an adverse opinion on PNCC's financial statements because of the recognition
~converted debt of P5.552 billion as part of equity and the non-recognition of the

e L
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, and 2014, respectively.

<ymmary of Observations and Recommendations

(e following are the other significant observations "and the corresponding
recommendations: :

1 Replacement by PNCC with a dated c_{reck' the postdated check it earlier issued to IAC
a5 = cash collateral enabled IAC to withdraw the amount of P71.072 million, depriving

o, PNCC of the interest thereon estimated at P2.369 million.
#

\We recommended that Management: .

a. Reguest from IAC a bank statement or any 'dun:ume'n_t that would show that tﬂ;
P71.072 million plus the interest thereon .since August 28, 2012 up to the present

cemained intact, considering that the said ‘amount was paid to IAC for collateral |

purposes only;

o, Arrange with the IAC Legal Department for the replacement of  the cash collateral
with a Deed of Assignment in the amount of P71.072 million in favor of IAC; and

c. File the necessary legal action to recover the P71.072 million plus interest effective
August 12, 2012 to the present should IAC refuse to cooperate.

=2

Cash advances totaling P57.927 million remained outstanding for almost 10 years.

We recommended that Management: .

‘a. Take the appropriati‘;___ legal actions to Enfqrée -the liquidation or recovery of
unliquidated cash advances; and

st and penalties thereon of P55.084 billion and P52.066 billion as of December 31,
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Report on the Financial Statements

= have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Philippine National
- netruction Corporation (PNCC), which comprise the statements of financial position as at

1 o

-+=r7es in equity and statements of cash flows for the years then ended, and a summary of
si3niicant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

1= -=memant's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

iz--gemant is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial

z . - accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards, and for .such

. ----- =5 management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
. L.i-ans ihat are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

]
¥
LN

g e

S . .-iized cur audits in accordance with Phiippine Standards on Auditing.

--='~ raasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from

.- - -+ ~=,2s performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
. .- = -2z r ne financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
czoent incuding the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
—-z-=-2m3 wnather due to fraud or-emor. In making those risk assessments, the auditor

cember 31, 2015 and 2014 and the statements of comprehensive income, statements of -

im1ms 20Ty S 10 express an opinion on these financial statements based on our -

2 szois -equire that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the

<. -=-= imzrnal control relevant to the entity’s preparationt and fair presentation of the {
s-z-~=z statements in order to, design audit procedures that are appropriate in’ the
- -- srsiances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
=--+’5 ‘nizrnal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
-- ~zs uzed and the reascnableness of accounting estimates made by Management, as
.= r= evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. BUREAU OF TNTEENAL
_ : ~ ; ARG TARSYER s e o
1. Falieve that the audit.evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropria ‘to pi § ASHISTANCE SIVISICH.

= nasis for our adverse audit opinion. Date

CAPR 14 2618
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Oasis for Adverse Opinion

Laltar of Instruction (LOI No. 1295 was issued in 1983 directing the conversion into equity
il obigations and guarantees of the then Construction Development Corporation of the
.= now PNGCC. from Government Financial Institutions. It provides that, after the
-1 gatiens of PNCC are converted into PNCC shares of common stock, it would result in the
4 mentprepayment of PNCC's various obligations enumerated in the LOI and PNCC shall
1ol be recuired to make further payments for interest on such obligations up to, and
neousive of, December 31, 1983. However, due to the then Central Bank of the Philippines’,
nov Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas, rule on Single Borrower's Limit, the amount of P5.552
billsn debts, inclusive of the advances made by the Bureau of the Treasury (BTr) in
ricing these debts, remained unconverted and were eventually transferred to and
assumed by the National Government (NG), thru the Asset Privatization Trust, now
ﬂmtization Management Office (PMO), pursuant to Proclamation No. SI:I) issued in 1986.

ippn

|1 unimplemented debt-to-equity conversion was treated by PNCC as equity, instead of
liatility, believing that the P5.552 billion is no longer a debt but simply represents unissued -
heres of stock awaiting conversion into equity. The PMO/BTr, however, sfill considered
‘hese unconverted debts as liability, claiming the total amount of P60.636 billion and
=5 518 billion as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, inclusive of accumulated interest
cnz'ges and penalties amounting to.P55.084 billion and P52.066 billion. '

The Office of the Government Corporate Counsel, in its Opinion No. 245 dated November
15.'2007, opined that PNCC may enter into an agreement with PMO for the conversion of
PNCC's remaining liabilities into PNCC's shares of common stock and that after the
corpletion of the equity conversion, PNCC shall no longer have any remaining obligations .
will the NG and PMO under LOI No. 1295, subject to the approval by higher authorities as
mav be required by law or regulation.

Due to their conflicting positions, the parties submitted the issue for resolution by the

# artment of Justice (DOJ). The DOJ dismissed PNCC's petition against the PMO and
~red the former to pay the latter its due and demandable obligation inclusive of interests

and penalties untll actually paid. PNCC's Motion for' Reconsideration (MR) and Supplement

o the MR were, likewise, denied by the DOJ on January 22, 2015 and July 13, 2015,

respectively. ~On June 26, 2015, PNCC filed a Motion for Appeal at the Office of the -

Prexident of the Philippines and filed the corresponding Appeal Memorandum on July 27, |

9 T s

L350,

Z=riier. on April 15, 2015, the Department of Finance (DOF) served to PNCC a Statement of
“-count as of March 31, 2015 informing that jts outstanding obligations' are due and . |
ser-and and that there is no longer any basis to consider Uﬁe conversion into equity of

CEMAN0GM

-5 ~Uniest otligation under LOI 1295

—_—

1
i

i
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“sns.d2rng the time that had elapsed and the DOJ's decision and the DOF's demand, we
zicva tat, -more likely than not, the planned conversion- to~ equity may. no longer
ralize. Corollary to this, Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) Financial
-="rting Bulletin (FRB) No. 006, which was issued in relation to the definition of QUi
siument under Philippine Accounting Standard 32, Financial IpstosmentSy andsihe,
-==uirements for the increase in authorized capital stock undér Section}36 A fhess
“sd: of the Philippines, provides that an enfity 'shall classify |de583
sunicriptions, or in the case.of the PNCC, debts subject of the debt-to-#
part of equity, if and only if, all of the following elements are presen
peritd: a) the unissued authorized capital stock of the entity Is insuj

]} €1




Lmoun! of shares indicated in the contract; b) there is Board of Directors' approval on the
proposd increase in authorized capital stock; c) there is stockholders' approval of said
nroposad increase; and d) the application for the approval of the proposed increase has
seen flad with SEC. PNCC was able to meet only the first element.

The resoqnition by PNCC of the P5.552 billion unconverted debts as equity instead of
liability: and its non-recognition of interests and penalties thereon accumulating to P55.084
Lillion and P52.066 billion as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, resulted in the
undersiatement in total liabilities by P60.636 billion, understatement in accumulated deficit
by P55.084 bilion and understatement in capital deficiency by P60.636 billion as of
Decemper 31, 20195. (As of December 31, 2014, understatement in total liabilities,
undersratement in accumulated deficit and understatement in capital deficiency amounted to
P57.6%8 billion, P52.066 billion, and P57.618 billion, respectively.)

(dversa Opinion

i
@ in our Hpinion, because of the significance of the matters discussed in the Basis for Adverse
Opinioa paragraphs, the financial statements do not present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the PNCC as at December 31, 2015 and 2014 and of its financial
performance and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with Philippine

_Financial Reporting Standards.
EI.FJ,[JJ".IE.-'S."S of Matter

‘e draw attention to Notes 2, 26 and 27 to the financial statements which discuss matters

pertaining to PNCC's going concern status, the Bureau of Internal Revenue assessments on

PHCC's deficiencies in various taxes, and the uncertainties related to the outcome of the

various pending lawsuits, litigations and arbitrations the PNCC is involved in. Because of the

significance of the matters described in the Basis for Adverse Opinion paragraphs, it is
g, MDD rpriate to and we do not express an opinion on the information referred to above.

Repor: on Supplementary Information Required Under
5, BIR Revenue Regulation No. 15-2010
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial
<:aterments taken as a whole. The supplementary information on taxes, duties and license
:==s i Note 31 to the financial statements is presented for purposes of filing with the Bureau
-+ m:smal Revenue and is not a required part of the .basic financial statements. Such
susolenentary information is the responsibility of management. Because of the significance
~: - mattars described in the Basis for Adverse Opinion paragraphs, it is inappropriate to
= v~ do not express an opinion on the information referred to above.

COMMISSION ON AUDIT
slipg =
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ZENAIDA V. DE VILLA

01z, Supervising Auditor
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FHILIPPINE NATIONAL CONSTRUCTION CORPORATION
STATEMEMNTS OF FINAHCIAL POSITION

Decismber 31, 2015 and 2014

(I Fhilippine Peso)

\
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' : Notes Decomber 31, December 31 January 1
20156 2014 2014
(48 Restated) {Aa Restated)
WSENTS
Caurrant ASSoLs ) L
st alhd Casn equiv alanis 4 WS.TW.‘Bi 393.544.53? 131.123.529’ E
A e receivabie 34,5 365,538,337 412,077,364 584,046,160
R ghles from officers and empioyeas 3.41 G H,MT;BM 42,39“,55? 42,513,387
Brapaymanis 35,7 12,898,230 10,068,693 22,733,050
! 1,118,445, 861 863,688,511 840,716,126
Mon' Curront Aezots
Investments 36,8 144,944,252 273,484,252 261,750,919
invetimen! property 378 10,668,948,000  10,442,188,155 10.442,198,155
Propaity and equipmeant, net 3.8, 10 TBT, 180,879 563,070,872 560,204 4
Oiher assels, nel 11 344,310,696 285,830,538 286:533.430
0 11,945,383927 11,564,662 817 11 559,686,977
TOTAL ASSETS 13,062.829,788  12,428,381,328  12.400,403.103
LIAEILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Currpnt Llabilitles
Arcotnts payable and accrued expenses 12 50,462,850 45,075,885 50,776,708
Cue s national government and its Instrumentalities 13 8,137,259,6186 7.870,20T 416 7.621,295.218
a3 govermnment-owned or controlied corporalions 14 1,203, 000,000 1,203,000.000 1,203,000,000
$ A= 9,350,762 456 0,127 373 402 B,B75,071,625
Hon-Zurrent Liabilities
. tax liabilities 25 3,408,933,250  3.273,141,560  3,273,432,335
pavablog 15 174,861,629 174,861,629 177,958,110
b 3,584, 794.879 3,448,003,189 3,451,350 445
Stociholders’ Equity (Capital Deficlency) 87,272,443 (146,095, 263) 73,840,733
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 13,062,829, 788 12 428,381,328 12400403103

Sae  coodnpanying Nolag 1o Financial Statements,

Da

" LARGE TAXFAYERS SERVICE

LARGE TAXPAYERS ASEISTANCE DIVISION: |

teod APR 14 2018 | sms

RECEIVED

ELMER B. TANAY _




DHILIPPINE NATIONAL CONSTRUCTION CORPORATION
STHTEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the Years Ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

ilm Philippine Peso)
T \ Motes December 31, December 31,
. 2015 2014
{As restated)
REVENUES :
S evenue and dividend share from Joint Venture Companies 33,19 120,226,215 105,870,088
'::_E‘_-_.-| al incarmne 3,31 2G 55.539.‘”25 3?24131]4
Service Income 21 10,627,519 0
TOTAL REVENUES 227,692,758 183,111,772
SOST OF SERVICES ; 22 (8,213,448) 0
GEMNERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE CVERHEAD .23 (63,342,573) (175,685,820}
INCOME FROM OPERATIONS 156,136,740 17,425,852
PEMALTY CHARGES ON UNPAID CONCESSION FEE 3.10, 13 {258,002,200) (258,002,200)
OTHER INCOME, net 24 244,934,334 21,713,279
HWET TNCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TAX . 143,068,674 (218,863,069).
DEF “RRED TAX EXPENSE (68,324,953) 0
HWET 'NCOME {LDES} T4.T-13.921 {213.5&3,059}
OTH R COMPREHENSIVE INCOME :
Mowement in revaluation ingrement, net of tax : 39 160,434,195 D |
E_Q_H:f_F_{E:'._]_-]EHSNE LHCOME.{L{JSSI 235,178,116 5215.563iﬂ59!i _

‘Sae 1ccompanying Notes to Financial Statements.

: BUREAU OF DTERI
! mﬁ’:rfxgiégmvmf SRR !
' A SSISTANCE DIVISION 4 !
o Date fAPR 1 & 2885 ' eps
™ o
REC I‘VEITJ i
ELMER B. TANAY J
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CHIL'PPINE NATIONAL CONSTRUCTION CORPORATION
rA“EMENTS OF CASH.FLOWS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

1 Philippine Peso)
T Note 2015 2014
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Rantal 103,970,201 103,940,982
i -_.,.-.'-,|;|{§ snNare Bﬂ,ﬁaﬂ,ﬁfwﬁ ?4.D?9’,423
e 5,923,342 2,518,103
199,824,479 180,538,508
Payments to!

ﬁ Stippliers (38,798,833)  (57,988,214)
Eriployees (36,962,014)  (31,759,479)
Directors (2,629,495) (2,706,568)
Consultants/retainers {34!_1i3_3?l (565,982)

Cash provided by operations 121,092,254 87,518,264

Taxes and licenses (2,748,0186) (2,627,140)

Penadies (600,000) (150,000)

Deficiency taxes 1] (4,818,810)

et cash provided by operaling activiies 117,744,238 79,922,314
CASH FLOWS FRDM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

liquication of ASDI 50% investment shares 127,500,000 0

Dividands 42,617,712 39,280,476

interests 5,463,149 3,216,515

Froc eds from sale of fixed assets/scrap materials - 905,605 2,990,346

_ Liquitation of CESLA investment shares 500,000 300,000

= sihers (various adjustments) o 91,816,007

Purchase of property and equipment (34,810) (4,590)

......... et cash provided by investing-activities 177,351,656 137,588,734

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 295,005,894 217,521,088

[3-'-'~.Sl"i AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 398,644,597 181,123,529

CASI- AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAI YEAR 693 Tﬂﬁﬂ 393!544 597

Seog g

~companying Notes to Fmanda.f Statements.

"l __

BUREALl OF INTERNAL REVENUE

Dﬂtn :

TANPAYERS SERVICE

LARGE TAXPAYERS ASSISTANCE DIVISION |

APR 14 2016 | sps
i
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=2/NE NATIONAL CONSTRUCTION CORPORATION

..2T=S TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

. FDORPORATE INFORMATION

e Company was originally incorporated under the name of Construction Development
Corparation of the Philippines (CDCP) in 1966 for a term of 50 years. Its Articles of .
|corsoration and By Laws were approved by the Securities and Exchange Commission
(3EC) on November 22, 1966 under SEC Registration No. 30939 and its actual operation
<rarled on April 16, 1967. The primary purpose of the Company is to undertake general
sontracting business with private parties, government agencies, and instrumentalities
relative to the construction of infrastructure projects and to engage in other related
<=rvices in a manner that will contribute to the economic development of the country.
OGP eventually rose to be one of the country's foremost construction companies with
extensive operations in the Philippines, the Middle East, and other ASEAN countries.

@ March 31, 1977, Presidential Decree (PD) 1113 granted CDCP the franchise to
aperate, construct, and maintain toll facilities in the North and South Luzon Tollways for a
ceriod of 30 years. (That franchise expired-on May 1, 2007.) PD 1113 was amended by -
£ 1894 in 1983 to Include, among others, the Metro Manila Expressway (MME) to serve
as an additional artery in the transportation of trade and commerce in the Metro Manila
Lrea and gave the Company another period of 30 years "from the completion of the

project.”

On May 7, 1981, Letter of Instruction (LOI) 1136 was issued mandating the National
Cevelopment Company (NDC) to invest in the Company by way of capital infusion in the
amount of P250 million. ' -

(in February 23, 1983, then President Ferdinand E. Marcos issued LOI 1295, directing the -
~reditor Government Financial Institutions (GFls) to convert into CDCP shares of stock the
inllowing: (1) all of the direct obligations of CDCP and those of its wholly-owned
- |bsidiaries. including, but not limited to loans, credits, accrued interests, fees and
- uances in any currency outstanding as of December 31, 1982; (2) the direct obligations
of COCP maturing in 1983; and (3) obligations maturing in 1883 which were guaranteed
by the GFls. With the implementation of LOI 1285, the GFls became the majority
stackholder of CDCP.

e amount of the debt to be converted into equity was around P7 billion. However, only
54 4 billion of the debt was issued shares of stocks while the remaining P5.552 billion was

left unconverted.

- An Dacember 07, 1983, the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) approved the

increase of its authorized capital stock fr%rn P16 to P2.7 billion in accordance with LOI
1295,

CDCP was later renamed to Philippine National Construction Corporation (PNCC) to
raflect the Philippine Government's stockholdipgs became a government-acquired
-sset corporation. Consequently, the various GFE’E}%@ '
Cirectors of the Company and participated in | IrHiisn




\n 1986 under Proclamation No. 50, the Company was placed under the Committee on
Privatization (COP) and the Asset Privatization Trust (APT). Also in 1986, under
Administrative Order No. B4, certain assets of the Philippine Export and Foreign Loan
Guarantee Corporation (Philguarantee) and the National Development ‘Company (NDC)
were transferred to the National Government (NG) which also assumed certain liabilities
af both Philguarantee and NDC. A total of P1.918 billion was transferred to the NG.

By virtue of LOI 1136 and 1295, 55.72 per cent of the Company’s equity was held by the
Assat Privatization Trust (APT) (now the Privatization Management Office or PMO), which
was created on December 08, 1986 by virtue of Proclamation No. 50. The other 21.235 per
cent was held by the Government Service Insurance System (GSIS) and the Land Bank of
ihe Philippines (LBP) with 20.96 per cent and 0.29 per cent, respectively. The remaining
23.03 per cent of the Company’s equity is under private ownership. '

In 1988, pursuant to Administrative Order Nos. 14 and 64, DBP, PNB, Philguarantee, and
NOC transferred their interests in the Company to the Republic of the Philippines which in
turn conveyed them to the APT (now the PMO) for disposition to-the private sector
pursuant to the government's privatization program.

From 1987 to 2001, the Company still engaged in construction business but this resulted
‘nlosses. It veered away from active involvement in construction operations, and focused
more on the operation and maintenance of its tollways. It entered into Joint Venture
Agreements (JVAs) that resulted in the division of the Tollways into.the South Luzon
Expressway (SLEX), the North Luzon Expressway (NLEX) and the Skyway.

In August 1995, the Company entered into a Business and Joint Venture Agreement
(BJVA) with Indonesia’s P.T.Citra Lamtofo Gung Persada (CITRA) and formed the joint.
venture company, Citra Metro Manila Tollways Corporation (CMMTC) which was granted
ihe Supplemental Tell Operation Agreement (STOA) to finance, design and construct the
South Metra Manila Skyway (SMMS) Project. The project covered the construction of the
. 5.xizmeter elevated road from Bicutan, Parafiaque City to the Makati Central Business

Diswrizn =z well as the rehabilitation of the 135 kilometer section of the SLEX from
“z=z-3 %o Magallanes. The Company's wholly-owned subsidiary, -PNCC Skyway '
& B5C), originally managed the operation and maintenance of the SMMS

- Coobar 899 marked the start of full opérations of the entire Skyway Stage 1,

“23T 1z Company entered into a JVA with the First Philippine Infrastructure
=,z.oment Corporation (FPIDC), for the rehabilitation of the NLEX. The Manila North
/s Corporation (MNTC) was incorporated as its joint venture company. MNTC was
- :ne STOA in June 1998 to finance, design, construct, operate and maintain the toll
-z 121l facilities and other facilities generating toll-relatéd income, in respect of the
' . Tna FPIDC was acquired by the Metro Pacific Investments Corporation (MPIC) in
The operation. and mainténance (O&M) of the NLEX is with-the Tollways

tzrzsement Corporation (TMC).  Following the issuance of the Toll Operation Permit

o=

02 zommercial operations started on February 1, 2005.

in 2002, the Company, as a Government-Owned and Controlled Corporation (GOCC) was
sttached to the Department of Public Works and Highways (DPWWH) for policy and
rrogram coordination and general supervision by virtue of Executive Order No. 148.




\n 2004, “pending privatization,” the Company was placed under and attached to the
Nepartment of Trade and Industry (DTI) as per Executive Order No. 331.

Iry February 2006, the Company entered into a JVA with Malaysian Corporation MTD
fianila Exprassways, Inc. (MTDME) and formed its joint venture company South Luzon
rollway Corp (SLTC). By virtue of the STOA entered into with the Toll Regulatory Board
(TRB) and the Company, SLTC committed to undertake all works required for the SLEX
Project including its total financing without sovereign guarantees and with the recovery of
= invesiment being in the form of the collection of toll by the Manila Toll Expressway
Systems, Inc. (MATES), its O&M. company. The SLEX Rehabilitation and Upgrading
Project consisted of the rehabilitation and expansion of the existing toll road from Alabang
ta Calamba (28.53 km) and the construction of the extension of the SLEX to Sto. Tomas,
Batangas (5.81 km.) with the associated spur to the Southern Tagalog Arterial Road (1.79
km.) SLTC was granted a 30-year concession period from February 2006 to February

2025. It includes the period of c::-nsh'a_.:cticn which began in June 2006.

On April 27, 2007, the TRB issued a Toll Operation Certificate (TOC) to the Company for
\he O&M of the SLEX. The said authority from the TRB, pursuant to its powers under its
charter (PD 1112), allowed the Company to operate and maintain the SLEX and fo collect .
ol fees, in the interim, after its franchise expiration on April 30, 2007. The effective date of -
‘ne TOC commenced on May 1, 2007, but in no case to exceed the date of substantial
completion of the SLEX Project Toll Roads under the STOA dated February 1, 2008, or
unless sooner revoked by the Board. In 2010, the operation was officially turned over to
SLTC and MATES. :

- December 2007, the Company entered into a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) with
~ TG and PNCC Skyway Corporation{PSC) where the Company was to have been
--= Jd=d P2 million by CMMTC in order for the Company to subscribe to the par value up
-~ -¢ zer cent of the total outstanding capital stock of the O&M company, Skyway
- __----n and Maintenance Corporation (SOMCO). PSC turned over the operation and
. =-=nss of the South Metro Manila Skyway Project to SOMCO which operates the
. -~z=r elevated tollway from Buendia to Alabang and the 13.5-kilometer-at-grade
--. -2 == liagallanes to Alabang. (The Company is awaiting for the issuance of 4,864
- 2=z =% z:22x which will give it 8.107 per cent share in SOMCO.)

FEIE

=r 14, 2008, a Subscription Agreehant was executed by and among the
Tomas Development Inc. (ASDI), the National Development Company
= Cempany, wherein the Company subscribed to 12,500 shares from the

sses ccmzn of the 150,000 shares authorized capital stock (with par.value of P1,000
-z =-z= =f 2301 a wholly-owned subsidiary of NDC which was, incorporated to
===z == D22z Har-SLEX connectorroad. = ——. . - )

s TUTS = WATA farsne Advance Works on the Daang Hari-SLEX Link Road Project
=~+2-=3 5y and between ASDI and the Company. The Company was -
ss=—rzes == Te Main Tumkey Contractor responsible for undertaking the Advance
s 3= = += —oiementation of the design and the construction of the Road Project,
i —mm=== of =-o —=ad facility connecting Daang Hari Road in Cavite to the SLEX
ez Susama —=ocs isrchange (The project was 25 per cent complete when the
~ o mersumer v 13 Sutiic Private Partnership (PPP) mandate, took over the project for
T awmese ¥ nedrg Lot ASDI was to be reimbursed with its cost plus a premium.
Zoowr = fee T=c Troiect was undertaken by DPWH in December 2011 and was

sl *
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subseqguently awarded 10 Ayala Carporation (AC) in the same month. On April 02, 2012, a
Deed of Absolute Sale was executed between ASDI and AC for the turnover of the project.

On April 27, 2008, CMMTC received the Notice to Proceed (NTP) from the TRB and it
officially started the South Metro Manila Skyway Project Stage 2, the 6.8 kilometer
clevated expressway from Bicutan to Alabang. On May 2011, Skyway Stage 2 was
completed with toll facilities and other ancillary requirements already in place.

\n 2008 and 2010, in the case of Ermnesto B. Francisco vs. TRB, PNCC et. al. (G.R. Nos.
'56910, 169917, 173630, and 183589, October 19, 2010 or the Francisco Case) and in
‘he case of Strategic Alliance Development Corporation vs. Radstock Securities Limited
o1 al. (G.R. No. 178158, December 04, 2009 or the Radstock Case), the Supreme Court
(SC) ruled and declared that with the expiration of the Company's franchise, the toll assets
~nd facilities of the Company were automatically turned over, by operation of law, to the
NG at no cost and consequently, this inevitably resulted in the, NG owning tao of the toll
fmes and the net income derived, after May 1, 2007. from the toll assets and facilities,
including the Company’s percentage share in the toll fees collected by the Joint Venture
Companies (JVCs) currently operating the tollways, including NLEX and Skyway.

The Supreme Court, in its resolution dated April 12, 2011 and in connection with the
Francisco Case, directed the TRB, with the assistance of the Commission.on Audit (COA),
to prepare and finalize the Implementing Rules -and ‘Guidelines (IRG) relative to the
Jetermination of net income remittable by the Company to the NG. An interim rules and
guidelinegs was issued on March 8, 2012, for the remittance by the JVCs to the National
Treasury of the net income that are supposed to be remitted by the JVCs from the
ravenues of the SLEX, NLEX and Skyway in accordance with the Francisco Case. The
~~roany nas been receiving 10 per cent of the revenue and dividend shares form the
Dime s 60 per cent is remitted by the JVCs to the National Treasury. '

ey 2012, the Company's shares in JVCs i.e. CMMTC, MNTC, TMC, SLTC and

= over to the government in February 2012 through a Deed of

- - Transfer Shares of Stocks to the National Government (NG} in compliance

5:;-:'!555?1 in the Francisco Case. (Note 2 equity participation in CMMTC)
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-2 ~-z= =%tng aforesaid SC Decision on th,-a. Rads'tack and Francisco Cases has been
-= . -afected in the financial statements. ' '

-+1 --= Company was attached and placed under the Office of the President (OP) of
=~ ~-~pas from the DTI per Executive Order No. 141. The Company entered into

L%

= =1 Venture Projects with Citra Central Expressway ‘Corporation (CCEC) for Metro

: woway (MMS) or Stage 3 Project and with Citra Intercity Tollways Inc. (CITI).for
-2 tAztrz Manila Expressway {MME) or C-8 Project. (Note. 2, Going Concern - New

— o ltaae e =
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~- 2 Governance Commission for GOCCs (GCG); in its memorandum for the President of
-+= Republic of the Philippines dated June 24; 2013, recommended the abolition of the .
7va [5) subsidiaries of the company, namely: Alabang-Sto.Tomas Development Inc.
(ASDI), DISC Contractors, Builders and General Services Inc. (DCBGSI), Traffic Control
Braducts Corporation (TCPC), CDCP Farms Corporation (CDCP FC) and Tierra Factors
~orporation (TFC) which was approved by His Excellency, the President through a
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nemorandum from the Executive Secretary dated August 7,2014. The'l‘:‘-_ompany isinthe
process of abolishing the five (5) subsidiaries. :

OnWarch 3. 2015, the Company submitted its Performance Agreement to the GCG. On
Decernber 1, 2015, the Makati Regional Trial Court (RTC) issued a Writ of Preliminary
‘njunction for Civil Case No. 15-384 in favor of Forum Holdings Corporation restraining the
GG, its representatives and - officers, and the Company's Board .of Directors from
rmplementing the said Performance Agreement. The Company is not impleaded as a
narty to the case filed by Forum. s

In August 2013, CDCP founder, Rodolfo M. Cuenica, filed a case against the TRB, COA,
the Company, MNTC and MATES, seeking the remittance of revenues and dividends on
the toll road projects to the Company alleging that TRB has not finalized-the IRG. The
Wzkati RTC “enjoined petitioner TRB, and PNGCGC from implementing the TRB'S Interim
21les and Guidelines dated 22 March 2012.° Ina resolution dated August 4, 2014, the
Supreme Court issued a Temporary Restraining Order (TRO) against the Makati RTC’s
TR, thus sustaining the status quo that revenue and dividends to be remitted directly to
the NG

In January 20186, three (3) GSIS members filed a case against the Company's Board of
Directors, Mambers of the Board of Trustees of the GSIS and GCG seeking to enjoin the
implementation of the Performance Agreement. On February 12, 2016, the RTC ordered
ine re-raffle of the case to a commercial court, _ .

Pursuant to R.A, 10149, the Company is listed as a non-chartered Gnvernmént‘-owned or
Controlled Corporation (GOCC) under the supervision of the GGG which is the central
advisory, monitoring, and oversight body of the NG under the OP.

The Company's corporate life will expire on November 22, 2016. The Company has sent
3 letter dated March 3, 2016 to the GCG regarding the extension of the corporate life of the
Company. '

<~ ~z-cizl statemants as of and for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 were
.---= .22 and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on April 6, 2018. .

SC'HG COMCERN _ ' ‘.
~-z Cz—oany holds updated partnerships for new Toll Road projects. The ;imjécps will

-~= Company to generate sufficient cash flow from dividend and revenue shares
= [/ Companies for the next 30 years, oA

]
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Tha registered office address of the Company is Km, 15, East Service. Road, Bicutan,
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Hiotro Manila Skyway (MMS) or Stage 3 Project

Thi Metro Manila Skyway Stage 3 Project starts from the existing Buendia interchange
and will be extended and eventually connected to the North Luzon Expressway (NLEX) at |
ihe Balintawak-EDSA interchange. The project is 14.80 kilometers in length.

. ©On May 3, 2011, CITRA and the Company submitted to TRB an Updated Joint
\enture Investment Proposal for the said project pursuant to one of the "Whereas
Clauses” of South Metro Manila Skyway (SMMS) Supplemental Tollway Operation
Agreement (STOA) dated November 27, 1995 as amended on July 18, 2007.
©ursuant to its mandate and authority granted under PD No. 1112, the TRB reviewed,
avaluated and approved the Updated Joint Venture Investment Proposal for Stage 3.

. On January 9, 2012, CITRA and the Company executed a Supplement to the-
Ssiness and Joint Venture Agreement (Supplement to BJVA) which governs the
molementation of the Stage 3 of the MMS and Stage 4 of the Project also known as
\he Metro Manila Expressway (MME). The parties also executed the Second
Supplement to the Business and ‘Joint Venture Agreement (Second Supplement to
BJVA) which contains the terms and conditions for the implemenitation of both MMS
and MME.

. On September 8, 2012, the Restated Second Stipplement to the Business and Joint
enture Agreement (Restated Second Supplement to BJVA), which contains the
antire agreement of the parties and embodies the final terms and conditions for MMS,
was executed. ' '

. On November 12, 2012, folluwlngj-Sacﬁan 1 of the Restated Second Supplement to
8JVA, Citra Central Expressway Corporation (CCEC), the joint venture company, was
incorporated as the vehicle to implement the finanicing, design, and construction of the

MMS.
Under this agreement, the Company is provided with the following:

. 20 per cent equity in CCEC, 10 per cent of which is “Free Carry” i.e. not paid for by the
Campany and can never be diluted; while the other 10 per cent is to be paid for. In
case of the Company's inability to fund the 10 per cent, CITRA needs to get the
Company's approval tor nominate. another shareholder. In 2015, when the call was
=ro for a capital increase in CCEC, the Company waived its subscription rights for - ..
i-2 =0 zer cent. The 10 per centinitial investment in CCEC amounted to P12.5 million.

» Proizcted share in gross revenues amounting to about.P35.06 billion for the duration
. atic_n_paﬁod (30 years), a
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-astécrshare in net profits amounting to about P21 42 billion for the duration of the

-
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= Membership in all Board Committees and Chairmanship of the Board's Audit
Committes, _ . ’
LY
I'he Company agreed to forego any equity share in the O&M provided the latter remains a
cost center and not a profit center, - : '

On September 26, 2013, the STOA governing the ﬂe's.ign. construction, operation and
maintenance of the SMMS-Stage 3 Project was approved by the Office of the President of
the Philippines.

Matro Manila Expressway (MME) or C-6 Project

The Metro Manila Expressway (MME) or C-6. Project is actually Stage 4 of the SMMS,
Mhis tell road will streteh from Bicutan'to San Jose Del Monte and will then connect to the
proposed MRT 7 Project which will extend to the NLEX. The toll road will have a length of
2433 km, 7.62 km of which is the elevated portion, six lanes, with six interchanges and 20
ramps, and a close toll collection system. The construction cest is estimated at P19.76
billian out of the total P29.84 billion project cost.

\n January 2014, the Restated Supplement to the Business and Joint Venture Agreement .
(Restated Supplement to BJVA) for MME Project was executed.

Patiernad from the MMS Project, the MME will provide the Company with the following:

+ 20 per cent equity in Citra Intercity Tollways Inc..(CITI), 10 per cent of which is “Free
Larry” i.e. not paid for by the Company and can never be diluted. - In case of the
Company’s inability to fund the-10 per cent, CITRA needs to get the Company's
approval to nominate another shareholder; '

Projected share in gross revenues amounting to about P43.86 billion for the duration
of tha operation period (30 years); i

* Projected share in net profits émaunting to about P27.21 billion for the duration of the
coeration period (30 years); '

* Cr= cermanent seat and one non-voting director to the Board of Joint Venture
~:mzery, regardless of its shareholdings:

i

“'=mzerstia in all Board Committees and 'Chainﬂansij_ig_ of the Board's Audit

2014, the STOA was approved by,the Office of the President (OP) of the
@ start of commercial operations of the C-6 project is expected in 2018.

gy

=.=~.2 Enares from New Projects ”

72 Cempany will earn revenue shares cn:nat'tntl revenue from the projects at the
“.zwing rates: 2.5 per cent for the 1% 4 years; 3 per cent from the 5 to the 7% year; 35
=27 cent from the 8" to the 10" year; ‘and 4 per cent from the 11™ year onward.
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Fental Income

10 per cent Revenue Share from Toll Fee Collections and 10 per cent Share in Declared
Diidends from Joint Venture Companies

On March 22, 2012, the TRB issued interim rules and guidelines covering the qmount of
money the Company will receive in order to cover gperating expenses in relation to the
rancisco and Radstock Cases. Both the TRB and the Company agreed to a 10 per cent
venue share from toll collection fees and declared dividends from joint venture

~armnpanies.
The Company receives the following revenue shares:

+ 10 per cent of 6 per cent share on the Manila North Tollways Corporation (MNTC)
Gross Revenue;

. 10 per cent of 3.5 per cent share on the Citra Metro Manila Tollways Corporation
(CMMTC) Gross Revenue; and ;

. 10 per cent of 1.75 per cent share on the South Luzon Tollway Gorporation (SLTC)
Gross Revenua, : i

Eor 2015 and 2014, the Company received revenue share from . MNTC, CMMTC and
SLTC in the amounts of P83.803 million and P72.965 million, respectively, while it
raceived dividends amounting to P36:423 million (from CMMTC) in 2015 and P32.905
million (from CMMTC and TMC) in 2014, ;

-

Rental income is derived from renting out investment property which includes the
Financial Center Area in Pasay Gity, the PNCC compound in Bicutan, Parafiaque, and a
rroparty in Porac, Pampanga. -

-

1015, the Board approved the minimum rental rate of P140.00 per square meter for the-
& Property. Total rent income for 2015 amounted to PS6.839 million and PBT.242
‘e n 2014, For 2018, the minimum rental rate will be in full effect and will resultin a

=iz35r nerease in rental income.
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Z~=: Particination in CMMTC

.2t~z n-sition of the Company that it has equity participation in CMMTC on the basis of
=0 <224 and pursuant to the provisions of the SMMS Supplemental Tollway Operation
t=-zzment (STOA) dated November 27, 1995 which was ‘approved by then President
/. Ramos. While the Company’s franchise expired in May 2007, Section 2 of PD
-222 =rovides that the “franchise grarited for the Metro Manila Expressway and all
=uizrsisns, linkages, stretches and diversion that may be constructed after the date of
--r-ovzl of this decree shall likewise have a term of thirty {30) years commencing from
zztz of completion of the project” which the Supreme Court (SC) affirmed in the Francisco

=

Tre Office of the Government Corporate Counsel (OGCC) ren&arad-dts opinion that the
PD 1884 projects (namely the SMMS — Skyway Stage 1 and 2.and MMS Stage 3 and
MME Stage 4) are “clearly covered by a still existing-congressional franchise. For the




- - -~z =='non of the Department of Justice (DOJ) that the Company still has a subsisting
- -v.z vz usive legislative franchise under PD 1894 and that only assets "that are related to

- me=nize ynder PD 1113 have accrued to the National Government (NG} and thus,
- .20t to be turned over to the NG.”

= -=z227, 1zo, the PD 1894 assets, facilities and shares are still held by PNCC.” itis

The shares in CMMTG were turned over to the NG by way of a Deed of Compliance of
“mares of Stock to the NG in February 2012. However, in 2013, after having secured the
spiniens of both the OGCC and the DOJ regarding the-validity of PD 1854, the Company -
requested CMMTC to refrain from transferring the shares of the Company to the NG and
refrain fram remitting the dividends and share in gross revenues of CMMTC to the NG.
Tha matter is still awaiting actions from CMMTC, who has referred the matter to their legal
counsel.  On the other hand, the Department of Finance (DOF) has requested for
~larification on the matter from the DOJ. Meanwhile, the shares still remain in the name of

the Company.

The Company shares. in CMMTC are worth P551.87 million which is equivalent fo 8.11 per
cent of total outstanding shares of CMMTC. The dividends and revenue shares from 2008 to
2015 amount to P2.085 billion of which the Company received 10 per cent or P208.6 million
pursuant to the interim rules and guidelines issued by the TRB. However, it is the position
of the Company that all revenue and dividends arising from its investment in CMMTC

belong to the Company.

issuance of Final Implementing Rules and Guidelines by the Toll Regulatory Board (TRB}

2 Supreme Court (SC) Resolution clarifying the automatic remittance to the NG of the toll
fes and net income derived from the Company's toll assets and facilities was issued in
r=ation to the Francisco Case. The Resolution directed the TRB, with the assistance of
Commission on Audit (COA), to "prepare and finalize the implementing .rules and -
sudelines relative to the determination of the net income remittable by PNCC to the
Flztional Government and to proceed with the same with dispatch.”

On March 22, 2012, the TRB issued a Director's Certificate approving the Interim Rules -
srd Guidelines (IRG) for the remittance by the Joint Venture Companies (JVCs) of the
revenues of the SLEX, NLEX and Skyway in accordance with the Francisco Case. As
subsequently agreed upon, the Company and TRB, as an interim arrangement, set aside
10 per cent of all amounts that are supposed to be remitted by the JVCs for remittance to
e Company while 80 per cent goes to the National Treasury. The IRG also stated that if
“qe 10 per cent is in excess of what is allowed by the guidelines, the-Company shall remit
-+ tha TRE for the National Treasury the excess amount. On the other hand, in case the
-1 mar cent is less than what is allowed under the guidélines, the shortfall shall be
deducted in the next remittance to be made by the JVCT - ' .
It is the position of the Company that the determination of the “the net income remittable
by it to the National Government” should include penalty charges on unpaid concession
‘ee amounting to P258 million per year as part of its administrative expenses. '

I i

ln March 2013, the Company proposed to TRB that overhead and .administrative
expenses plus the penalty charges be deducted from gross revenue from the Joint
Venture Agreements Income in order to arrive at the Net Income to be remitted to the NG.

T
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% foiow-up letter dated December 2, 2015 was sent. The Company has booked penalty

~karges on unpaid concession fees from 201 0-2015 amounting to P1.54 billion.

b

'he Company is stil awaiting the issuance of the Final Implementing Rules and
Suidelines from TRE.

Febt of P5.552 Bilion Remained Unconverted to Equity

[e Company's debt of P5.552 billion which remained unconverted to equity is treated as
part of equity in the Company's books, instead of a liability. The interest and penalties
urilaterally charged thereon by the Privatization Management Office (PMO)/ Bureau ofthe

Treasury (BTr) amounting to F’_ES,DB#billiun and P52.066 billion as of December 31, 2015
and 2014 were not taken up in the Company’s books.

The assertion that the P5.552 billion should be part of equity is-supported by a Supreme
Court (SC) ruling that recognizes the validity of Letter of Instruction (LO) 1295 confirming
ihat the P5.552 billion is no longer a debt but equity. The Office of the Solicitor General
(OSG) and the Office of the Government Corporate Counsel (OGCC) have concurred with

this ruiing.

Pursuant to the mutual agreement between the Company and the PMO, the
optionfauthority to convert the mentioned debt into equity was submitied to the
Department of Justice (DOJ) on June 21, 2012 for arbitration. -

On Fesruary 18, 2014, the DOJ dismissed the Company’s 'patiti'un against the PMO. The
Company filed a Motion for Reconsideration (MR) with DOJ on March 14, 2014 which was
deniad by the DOJ on January 22, 2015 Thereafter, the Company filed a Supplement to

‘e MR on May 28, 2015 which was likewise denied by the DOJ'in its order dated July 13,

2015, .

On June 26, 2015, the Company filed a Notice of Appeal with the Office of the President
(OP) of the Philippines and filed the corresponding Appeal Memorandum on July 27,
2015 T :

The Company is awaiting the resolution of the OP on its appeal.

Payment of Company Obligation to the Mational Guvémmen! .

The Company intends to pay recognized debts using the proceeds from the sale of its
investment properties. The Board approved the offer to apply part-of FCA'to pay liabilities
i the National Government (NG). The Company sent a letter dated July 21,2015 to the
0P reesgnizing its liability to the NG in the amount of-P7.9 billion and proposing to “pay-off
~= recognized obligations, particularly given that the obligation to the TRB for unpaid
~-~r~cssions fees carries with it a ‘penalty of two percent per-menth.” The Company [s
= w2iting the decision of the OP. T -

¥




5 BASIS OF PREPARATION

R ecrganization and Sireamlining of Company Operations

'~ foard has reorganized and streamlined the Company operations as follows:

\nitiated the process of closing its subsidiaries that are no longer operational and those

that are losing;

\itiated the process of bidding out properties in order to pay off liabilities;.

proposead to the Office of the President the disposition of a part of the Financial Center

Area property in order to pay off recognized obligations;

4 Sentaletter to TRB for the issuance of the final implementing guide'line's to include the

penalty charges,

n

Separated seven employees in 2015 to cut down on labor cost; and

& Assumed the operations of its subsidiary, the DISC Contractars, Builders and General
Samrvices Inc. (DCBGSI) which now operates.as a separate division of the Company.

POLICIES

%1 Basis of Preparation

e

AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

The financial statements are prepared on a historical cost basis, except for
‘westment property and property and equipment which are carried. at revalued
amounts. The financial statements are presented in Philippine peso, which is the
Company's functional and presentation currency. All amounts are rounded off to

{he nearest peso except when otherwise indicated.

3.2 Statement of Compliance

The Company's financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the .

Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS).

33 Revenue Recognition - -

Bursuant to the Supreme. Court En Banc Decision, as discussed in ﬂg;g 1, the
Company no longer recorded the tollways income from the Morth and South Luzen

Tollways (NLT and SLT). -

Fanding issuance of the Implementing Rules and Guidelines for the determination
of the amounts due to the Company for'its administrative expenses, the Company
recognized 10 per cent of its share from the joint venture companies gross toll
-avenLas, in sccordance with the interim rules and guidelines issued by the TRE.

e T
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Rental income arising from the investment property is accounted for on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

#llowance for Doubtful Accounts

Sllowance for doubtiul accounts is maintained at a level cunsldered adequate to
provide for potentially uncollectible receivables. The level of allowance is based on.
past collection experience and other factors that may affect collectibility. 'Evaluation
of the receivables, on a per account basis, is performed on a continuous basis

taroughout the year.

Frepayments

Prepayments are expenses paid in advance and recorded as assata before these are
utilized. These are comprised of insurance premiums, other prepaid items, and
creditable withholding taxes. Prepayments that are expected to be realized for no more
than 12 months after the reporting date are classified as current assets; otherwise,
these are classified as other non-current assets.

These accounts alse include inventories consisting principally of construction
materials, spare parts, and supplies are stated at cost, generally determined by the
average cost method for a significant portion of domestic inventories and by the
first-in, first-out method for other inventories, Allowance for inventory writedown is
provided for all non-moving/obsolete items of the inventory account.

Investmenis -

The Company accounts for its investments in wholly-owned/controlled subsidiaries
at cost. Allowance for impairment is provided. :

The Company believes that the effects of not consolidating the subsidiaries are not
material to the financial statements because these are no longer operating, except
izr DISC Contractors, Builders and General Services, Inc. {DCBGEJ} which has -
czen incurring losses, resultmg to accumulated deficit .
I~ areguiar soard meetmg held on Movember 14, 2011 the PNCC Board resolved
=moly with the mandate of the Supreme Court to transfer and turn over to the
Mador ai Government (NG) the shares of stock in tollway Jolnt venture companies
nich PNCC is holding in trust for the NG. .

. I . i ¥
1,z 20 for sale equity securities (club shares} are recorded/ measured/presented
=+ far market value as provided .for under=PFRS 8, :Financial Instruments:
T zzsfication and Measurement,

‘= zztment Property

invesiment property is comprised of 1and or burlding or bath held to eamn rentals or
fzr capital appreciation or both. Investment property is recognized as an asset
nen and only when it is probable that future economic benefits assoclated with the
croparty flows to the entity 'and the cost of the property can be measured reliably.
B E P
e ey H=—
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! 3.8
3.10

Investment property is initially measured at cost. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the account is stated at fair value, which has beén determined based on the
valuations performed by independent firms of appraisers. The changes in fair value
from year to year are recognized in the profit or loss.

Froperty and Equipment

Froperty and eqmpment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated -impairment in value, Property and equipment are subsequently
carried at revalued amounts.

Depreciation commences once the r::n:-;:.-uerr;.r and equipment are available for use

and is computed using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful -

lives:
. oy Estimated Useful Lives
Asset Type - {in years)

“Land improvements - - ' ! 10
Buildings and |mprr.:warnants _ 1010 33
Construction eqguipment -210 10
Transportation equipment et 3to5
Office equipment, furniture and fixtures 5

thers s 2t 7

Fully depreciated assets are retained in the accounts until they are no longer in use
and no further depreciation is charged against operations.

WWhen the assets are refired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related
accumulated depreciation and impairment in value are removed from the accounts
and any gain or loss resulting from their disposal is directly charged or credited in
the current operations,

Fevaluation Increment in Property

The increase in the asset's camying amount as a result of revaluation is credited to

gquity under the heading of “Revaluation Increment in Property”. The revalued -

asset is being depreciated and, as such, part of the surplus is being realized as the

asset is used. Realization of the revaluation mcre.ment is charged to "Retained-

Earnings” accoun* : . ]
e
an- surplus realized as of Dacambar 31, 2015 and 2014 in the same amount of
0.869 million are reflected in the ﬁnanma] statements. Piecemeal realization of the
ravaluation increment is effected on.a-y&arly basis”

Revenue Re:odnitiun of Service Income

Service revenue and costs are recngnized onthe basm uf perpentaga of completion
method.

PR T T T
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3.11 Borrowing Costs

g Borrowing costs are expensed as incurred. These costs represent the 2 per cent
penalty charges imposed by the Toll Fte:gula.tr:irr:.r Board (TRB) on unpaid concassion

fee,
3,12 Income Taxes

Current income tax assets or liabilities comprise of those claims from, or obligations
to, fiscal authorities relating to the current or pricr reporting period, that are
uncollected or unpaid at reporting date. They are calculated according to the tax
rates and tax |laws applicable to the fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the
taxable profit for the year. All changes fo current tax assets or liabilities are
iﬂ’ﬁ‘ ' recognized as a componant of tax axpanse in.the statement of comprehensive
I""Il;.-l;'.ll'l"-E,l

For financial reporting purposes, deferred tax assets are. recugnlzad for the carry
forward benefits of unused tax credits from Net Operating Loss Carry-Over -
(NOLCO) and from excess Minimum Corporate Income Tax (MCIT) over Regular
Corporate Income Tax (RCIT) to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized.

Tne carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and
reﬂL.ﬂEd to the extent that itis no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to a[Fr:sw all or part of the dafarrad tax assets to be utilized.

Deferred tax assels and hab:ht:es are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax
rales and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the r&pﬂmng

date.

S 3.13 Adoption of New and Revised PFRS

The Company had adopted the following PFRSs effective January 1, 2012; °

« PFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Enhanced Derecognifion and -
Transfer of Financial Assets Disclosure Requiréments — The amended standard
reguires additional disclosure on financial assets that have been transférred but
not derecognised and an entity’s continuing involvement.in the: derecognised
assets. This disclosure is required to enable the user of the financial statements
to evaluate any remaining risk on the transﬁa_rred assets.

= PAS 12, Income Taxes- Deferred Taxes: Recovery of Underdying Asseis -
{smended)-= The amendment clarifies that the deferred tax on investment
oroperty measured using the fair value model in PAS 40, investment Property,
should be determined considering that-the carrying value of the investment
property  will be recovered through a sale transaction. Deferred tax on

non-depreciable assets that are measured using the revaluation modal in PAS
16, Property and Eguipment, should also be measuwred by detemmining the
recoverability of the non-depreciable assets in a sale transacson. :

e
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These new and revised PFRSs have no significant impact on the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements of the Company. '

Maw and Revised PFRSs

A number of new or.revised standards, amendments to ‘standards and
interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning after January 01, 2013
and have not been applied in preparing the financial statements. Under prevailing
circumstances, the adoption. of the following -new and revised PFRSs is not
expected to have any material effect on the financial statements:

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013;

PAS 19, Employee Benefits (Amendment) — There were numerous. changes
ranging from the fundamental such as removing the corridor mechanism in the
recognition of actuarial gains or losses and the concept of expected returns on
plan assets to simple clarifications and re-wording.

+ PAS 27, Separate Financial Statements (as. Revised in 2011) - As a

consequence of the new PFRS 10 'and PFRS 12, PAS 27 is now limited to
accounting for subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities, and associates in'separate
financizl statements, :

«  PAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (as Revised in 2011) -

This standard prescribes the apphr.:atron of the equity method to investments in
|cint ventures and associates~ :

» PFRS 7, anancfa! Instruments Diselosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and

Financial Liabilities (Amendment) — The amendment requires entities to disclose
information that will enable users to evaluate the effect or potential effect of
netting arrangements on an entity's-financial position. - The-new disclosure is
required for .all recognized- financdial instruments that are subject to an
enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement,

» PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Stararﬁents —= The standard replaces the

portion of PAS 27, Consolidated and Separate Frhaﬂcia.’ Statermnents, that
addresses the accounting for consolidated financial statements and SIC-12,
Consolidstioh - Special Purpose Entities. It establishes a single control model
that applies to all entities including special purpose entities. Management will’
have to exercise significant judgment to determineWhich entities are r:untrulied

and are requ:red tn be mnsnltdated by a parent company.

SFRS 11, Joint Armngaments - PFRS: 11 replaces PAS 31, Interests in Joint
Ventures and SIC-13, Jointly-controlled Entities - Norn-monetary Contributions

- by Ventures—The standard removes the option to account for jointly controlled
entities (JCEs) using proportionate consolidation. Instead, joint venture entities
that meet the definition of a joint venture must be accounted for using the equity
method.
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These new and revised PFRSs have no significant impact on the amounts 3:‘1:1
disclosures in the financial statements of the Company.

MNew and Revised PFRSs

& number of new or. reulaad standards, amendments to ‘standards and
intarpretations are effective for annual periods beginning after January 01, 2013
and have not been applied in preparing the financial statements. Under pr&vaillﬂg
circumstances, the adoption. of ‘the following-new and revised PFRSs is not
expected to have any material effect on the financial statements:

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013:

PAS 19, Employee Benefits (Amendment) — There were numerous changes
ranging from the fundamental such as removing the corridor mechanism in the
recognition of actuarial gains or losses and the concept of expected retums on
plan assets to simple clarifications and re-wording. ;

PAS 27, Separate Financial Statements (as Revised in 2011) - As .a
censequence of the new PFRS 10 and PFRS 12, PAS 27 is now limited to
accounting for subsidiaries, Jmntiy controlled entities, and assoclates in separate

financial statements.

PAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint ‘.f‘en!ur&s_ (as Revjséd in 2011) =
This standard prescribes the application of the equity method to investments in
joint ventures and associates~ :

PFRS 7, Financial Instruments Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities (Amendment) — The amendment requires entities to disclose
information that will enable users to evaluate the effect or potential effect of
netting arrangements on an entity's: financial position. - The-new disclosure is
required ‘for all recognized- financial instruments that are subject to ar
enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement.

PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements — The standard replaces the
rortion of PAS 27, Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, that
addresses the accounting for consolidated financial statements and SIC-12,
Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities. It estahhshes a single control mode[
that applies to all entities including special purpose entites. Management will
have to exercise significant judgment to determinewhich entities are controlied,
and are required tc be consolidated by a parent company.

PERS 11, Joint Arrangemenrs - PFRS 1‘1 repfaaas PAS 31, Interests in Joint
Ventures and SIC-13, Jointly-controlled Entities - Non-monetary Contributions

~ by Ventures —The standard removes the option to account for jointly controlled
entities (JCEs) using proportionate consolidation. Instead, joint venture entities”
that meest the definition of a joint vantura must ba accounted for using the equity
method.
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CHactive for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2015:

. PFRS 9, Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement — This standard
is the first phase in replacing PAS 39 and applies to classification and
measurement of financial assets as defined in PAS 38.

4 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

&. This account consists of: _ .
by . 2015 2014
Cash in banks 23,880,731 46,727,310
Cash equivalents _ 669,659,760 351,594,287
Petty cash and revolving fund ; ; 200,000 323,000
693,740,491 398,644,597

Cash in banks earn interest atthe respective bank deposit rates.

Cash equivalents are short-term investments that are made for varying periods or up to
ihree months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Company and eamn
interest at the prevailing short-term investment rates. A

5 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

~

~ha zccount consists of the following:

T 2015 2014
Tauznces to the Bureau of the Treasury (BTn 150,000,000 150,000,000
Certract related receivables ©432,010,696 .~ 120,413,785
. ~counts receivable-trade . " 64,852,231 . 63,089,379
A smounts receivable-subsidiaries and affiliates 9,286,689 8,800,268
s dvances to CESLA - 18,789 _ 27,658
Zdvances to suppliers . 76,808 3,600 - -
s avances for SSS/EC benefits : 38,409 ~ 5;400 .
Frhar accounts receivable -9,255,615 69,757,183
B 365,539,337 412,077,364

Advances and receivables account in CY.2015 consists of the fu!lov-ring':

. Remittances to the BTr of P150 million (P50 million in 2008 and P100 million in 2010)
originally intended for application against the unpaid concessich Tee, but was
confirmed by.the BTr to have been applied. against outstanding NG advances to the
Company. The accountis initially recorded as Advances to BTr pending clarification
on the application of payment considering that no liability to BTt is recorded in the
hooks of the Company (as discussed In Notes 132nd 18).

R -
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. Contract related receivables

| »  Accomplishment and retention receivable from the Philippine Merchant Marine
Academy (PMMA) totaling P78.178 million, wherein a resolution in favor of the
Company was rendered by the Department of Justice on August 02, 2008,
ordering PMMA to pay the principal amount plus six per gent interest per annum
from the date of first demand on June 24, 2004. The Office of the Government
Corporate Counsel (OGCC) was requested to file a Petition for money claims with
the Commission on Audit (COA) in behalf of the Company. ;

» Unpaid escalation billings from the Manila International Airport Authority (MIAA) in - |
the principal amount of P42.235 million (net of P14.181 million collection in -
~ August 2004), wherein a covering decision from the Office of the President of the
‘ﬂ"' Philippines was rendered in favor of the Company against MIAA, ordering the
; atter to pay the Company the' principal amount of P56.724 million and interest

thereon at the rate of six per cent per annum from the date of first demand on
January 31, 1989 until the same is fully paid.’

An Juna 18 2014, the Company wrote the Commission on Audit (COA) in
connection with the status of money claims filed by the former to the latter against
MiAA docketed as COA-CPCN 2012-013 and COA-CPCN 2012-084.

Tha COA, in its letter reply of August 07, 2014, informed the Company that the
sforesaid cases are under the evaluation of the Commission under the Legal
Services Sector, Claims and Adjudication Office-Corporate. Accordingly, the
Company will be provided with the pertinent decisions after approval of the
Csmmission Proper. The case is still pending resolution by COA. _

. Accounts receivable-trade consists of the following:

fi » Uncollected Revenue shares from Joint Venture Cornp_ar_:.ies (JVCs) in the
- amount of P52.375 million. - 5 '

3+ [aceivable from various tenants at the Financial CenterArea (FCA) amountingto |,
212,477 million. :

. Accounts receivable-subsidiaties and affiliates totaling P9.286 million represent
various accommodations to the Company's subsidiaries: Alabang-Sto. Tomas- ..
Development, Inc. (ASDI) - 'PB,535; DISC Contractors, ‘Builders and General
Services, Inc. (DCBGSI) - P8.856 million; and Traffic Control Products Corporation
(TCPC) - P0.424 million. PR :

. Other ccounts receivable consists mainly of the Supersedeas/cash bonds re: e
various NLRC cases filed by present and former employees of the Company totaling
P& 858 million, which consist mostly of claims for non-payment of benefits, such as =
mid-year banus, exit bonus, and other benefits. The decrease from P69.757 million in T
2014 to P9,255 million in 2015 was mainly due to the expiry of the Minimum
orporate Income Tax (MCIT) amounting to P59.749 million. '
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~ECEIVABLES FROM OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES

Thetaccount consists of the following:

o 2015 ' 2014
Former officers and consultants 42,510,000 - 42,510,000
Officers and employees 1,651,384 379,457
Directors 106,419 . 10,500
) 44,267,803 - 42,899,957

The amount of P42.51 million represents cash advances for franchise extension
granted to former officers and consultants, of which, P2.89 million are receivables
sam former consultants ‘which are covered by Notices of Disallowance with
corresponding Memorandum of Appeal filed with the Commission on Audit. The
balance of P39.52 million is a receivable from a former officer which was referred to
the OGCC for legal action. - : ’

Seceivables from officers and employees totaling P1.651 million are broken down as
folows: cash advances of P1.339 million which formed part of the health care
insurance premium of P1.818 million paid by the Company in 2015 and was covered
by an Undertaking dated March 4, 2015, stating that the employees and officers will
pay the Company in 12 equal monthly installment to commence in June 2016 or after
the ruling of the Governance Commission on Government-Owned and Controlled
Corporation (GCG) on the'petition filed in their office for the inclusion of the said
nealth care benefit, whichever comes first; employees' 2015 under withheld {ax on
compensation of P156,086 which are being paid through payroll deduction up to April
2016.

. 7. PREPAYMENTS

£

e

This account consists of the following:

Prepayments 9,239,804 3,718,481 .
Inventories . i 3,658,426 6,348,112
. 12,898,230 - © 10,086,583

7 1 Breakdown of the prepayments account: :

= 2015 2014
Prepaid income tax ¢ - ' 8,081,311 ‘2,122,280
Prepaid taxes and licenses 1,089,940 1,083,968
Prepaid insurance P . .p6,633 i 502,233
Prepaid expenses i 1,920 0
. % : 9,235,804 3,718,481

2015 . 2014
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7.2 Composition of the inventory account:

. 2015 2014
" Spare parts and supplies 2,537,049 2,538,996
Gonstruction materials 586,993 ' o
Fuel oil, andlubrcants 308,411 139,133 ... _
Oihers 3,568,012 . ) _3 663,983
ey T e il - WA, TRl e P ---L?,nu-'uldés ﬁ 348 1 1 2
Allowsanee for inventory write-down (3,342,039) 0
- 3,658,426 ﬁ-.aexa.q 12

In 2015, the Company failed in its attempt to bid out the remaining inventories due to lack
of bidders but the Company will still pursue its disposal in 2016: A 60 per cent allowance
was provided for inventories that are dus for d]spusal basad on its appraised value.

Inventaries-others account consists mustly of common supphes and hardware materials,
office supplies, and medical and dental supplies.

IMVESTMENTS
This account consists of, :
) 2015 : 2014 -
Investments in stocks o+ '
Subsidiaries and affiliates 5 : ; ;
Alabang-Sto Tomas Development, Inc. - 127,500,000 255,000,000
Dasmarifias Industrial & Steelworks Corp. ™ 96,413,530 896,413,530
Tierra Factors Corparation ' 51,635,109 51,635,109
:DCP Farms Corporation 15,120,200 15,120,200
Citra Central Expressway Corporation 12,500,000 12,500,000
Manila Land Corporation 10,000,000 10,000,000
Managerial Resources Corporation 1,525,922 1,525,822
San Ramon Ranch 1,100,000 1,100,000
Traffic Contral Products Corporation 700,000 700,000
San Roque Ranch 550,000 550,000
FMNCC Skyway Corporation 125,050 125,050
Land Management Corporation - 11,000 11,000
317,180,811 444 680,811
Allowances for losses - (177,180,811) (177,180,811)
_ 140,000,000 267,500,000




. 2015 2074
investments in available for sale securities o

Mimaosa Golf and Country Club 3,180,000 3.1 ED.DEITF}
Manila Electric Company 476,970~ -476,970..
Philippine Long Distance Telephone Company 350,739 . 350,799
Laguna Lake Deuaiopmeni‘::ﬂuthmity----{net#&f:-:n-ﬂ..-na-- k. R
cubscriptions payable of P258,642) 181,168 181,158
“Lerto Azul Beach and Country Club _ 100,000 - 100,000
architactural Centre, Ing. 3,500 - 3.500
' : 4,292,427 4,292,427
Market adjustment - ~yailable for sale securities {1 ,729,500) - (1,589,500)
L 2,562,927 . 2,702,927
Investment-others ' 0 o '
SDCP Employees Savings & Loan Association " 2,094,725 . 7 ~2,094 725 -
Others - 286,600 286,600
- . 2,381,325 3,281,325
S 144,944,252 273,484,252

A 100 per cent impairment loss is provided for investments in inactive and non-operating
subsidiaries and affiliates, as well as investments in the remaining active wholly-owned
subsidiary, due to incurrence of losses resulting to accumulated deficit.

The Governance Commission for GOCCs (GCG), in its memorandum for the President of

the Republic of the Philippines dated June 24, 2013, recommended the abolition of the
five subsidiaries of the Company, namely: Alabang-Sto.Tomas Development, Inc.
(ASDI); DISC Contractors, Builders and General Services Inc. (DCBGSI); Traffic Control
Braducts Corporation (TCPC); CDCP-Farms Corporation (CDCP-FC);- and Tierra
Eartors Corporation (TFC)- : ' L

Through a Memorandum from the Executive Secretary dated August 07, 2014, the GCG
was informed that its recommendation to abolish the PNCC subsidiaries had been
sroroved by His Excellency, the. President, -subject. to -pertinent laws, rules, and

r e o
2guiahions:

- Omtober 16, 2012, ASDI's corporate life was shortened up to December 31, 2012.

(SRR S AN )

L1 I

-1ty ownership of the Company at 51 per cent, with the remaining 49 per cent owned
=, tna Mational Development Company (NDC). On .December 08, 2015, ASDI
> j=asted 127,500 common shares of PNCC as part of its dissolution process paying
=00 P127.5 million. ASDI has a pending collection balance of P4.2 million from
ot i
. 31 September 28, 2013, TCPC Board Resolution BD-006-2013 was issued to
oroceed with TCPC's abolition/dissolution. The conveyance of TCPC assets to PNCC
~as already been completed. Part of these assets has already been disposed through
aublic bidding. The remaining undisposed assets are now being classified according
10 commodity classification for appraisal and for purposes of higher return upen sale.

e bl
e v——
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S~ Avgust 7, 2014, this-Board resolution was revoked. - Investment in ASDI was
~=naly 255,000 common shares with a par value of P1,000 per share representing

i




« On September 30, 2015, DCBGS| was closed pursuant to DCBGSI Shareholders’
Resolution dated August 7, 2015. On October 1, 2015, PNCC absorbed DCBGSI
functions. On January 18, 2018, the Board of Directors of DCBGS! approved the

shartening of its corporate life to January 31, EQj_ﬁ;‘;:__ - ;

=1

______ :

i B ol
. On September 30, 2015, Special Stockholders Mestings of TFC and COCP-FCwere '~ . .
el (o digsolve these subsidiaries. I'u"l!iiriag‘émerit'ié“ﬁﬁll"aﬁ.’hiﬂﬁgﬁh'a“éﬁﬁmﬁﬂﬁéﬁt“ - i 3
Srectors for both companies in order fo call a Board Meeting to put into effect the
~ineure of the two companies. A letter dated March 10, 2016 has been sent to the
(353 regarding this matter, '

. On June 30 2014, Citra Central Expressway Corporation issued a 10 per cent “free
carry" equity share worth p12.5 million as the Company's share inthe JV Company.

TINVESTMENT PROPERTY

This account consists of the following:. ; ,
Buildings-and

ot Land . Improvements ' Total
A1 December 31, 2014 . . oo

Cost 70,772,301 0 , 70,772,301
J“[:'P_rﬂlbal . 1[],'031,522,354 ; 339.9G3,GDD 10,371,425,854 .

10,102,295,155- 339,903,000 - 10,442,198,155

a1 Dacember 31, 2015

Cost

70,772,301

Opening Net Book Value 70,772,301 : o
Additions S D ¢
Mat Book Va - 70,772,301 0 70,772,301

Galance at beginning of year  10,031,522,854 338,503,000 10,371,425,854 s

Aopraisal Adjustment 296,432,345 . (68,682,500) - 227,749 845 |
Balance at end of year 10,327,955,199 271,220,500 10,599,175,699
10,398,727,600 . 271,220,500  10,669,948,000

At December 31, 2015
Cost 70,772,301 .. .0 T 70,772,301 i
Appraisal : . 10,327,955,189 271,220,500~ 10,599,175,699 .

10,398,727,500 271,220,500  10,669,948,000

91 Financial Center Area(FCA) in Pasay Gity

I 1573 a contract was entered into by and between the Company and the Republic
of the Philippines (RP), represented by the then Departrment of Public Highways
now Department of Public Works and Highways), for the construction of the
Manila-Cavite Coastal Road and the reclamation of some portions of the foreshore
and offshore lands along Manila Bay, otherwise known as the Manila-Cavite Coastal
Road Proiect, at the Company's expense.




In compensation-for the work accomplishments, the Company obtained the 129,548
sq.m.-land, known as Lot 8, from the National Government for P84.6 million, covered
by Certificate of Pledge No. 2 (P38.5 million) and Certificate of Pledge No. 3 (P26.1

million),

Administrative” Order (AQ) No. 397, which was signed and approved by fher{

President Fidel W. Rames&mh;&ay.-afir;_.-wgﬂ,—_mmdamd.ﬂaatﬁm%ﬁ-tﬁm&rﬁmmm& :

of PNCC

Although the title to the property is still in the name of the Republic of the Philippines
#s of report date, the Office of the Government Corporate Counsel (OGCC) issued
an opinion on April 21, 2001 that the Company can sell, dispose, or assign its real
rights, interests, and participation over the property, which real right or interest over
Lat 6 is evidenced by the aforesaid Certificates of Pledge. -

Oh August 02, 2013, the OGCC jssued anather opinion that the Company may not
sell or transfer its ownership of the FCA to a private corporation but may only lease it
for a period not exceeding 25 years, renewable for not more than 25 years, and not to
exceed 1,000 hectares'in area. The Company may only sell it to Filipino citizens
subject to the 12-hectare Constitutional limitation. Under these circumstances, the
Company can either; (1) secure a presidential proclamation, officially declaring that
the FCA is no longer needed for public use; or (2) dispose it, consistent with the
constitutional restriction, to a qualified Filipino citizen, but only to the extent of 12
hectares. '

Independent firms of appraisers engaged by the Company to determine the fair value .

of the property reported a P6.63 bitlion"‘appmis_ad value in 2009, P7.462 billion in
2010, P7.434 billion in 2011, P8.72 billion in 2013 and P9.987 billion in.2015.

The subject property has been rented out and has been generating rental revenue
P96.839 million and

since 2308, Rental income eamed, net of vat, amounted to
P£4.281 million in 2015 and 2014, respectively

= oIz of the subject p Operty is intended for sale through public bidding, with the

ocroperies .(held for c.urranﬂy undetermined future use or
2uon) also comprise the Investment Property account:

Area Appraisal

s _nmEten insgm) (Cost Intrease Fair Value
~EEchct Missos Creras! 20,620 1,077,484 86,600,516 87,678,000
Zzarfizs Copte 75.000 625,800 340,624,200 341 250,000
‘mmacs Fampsres 27,905 -32,027 14,478,973 14,511,000

>3 Tazaes. 8207 1,367,339 54,814,661 56,182,000
nehz oo 4770 1,185,531 45,582,469 46,768,000
~r= Paparcs 115.501 145,737 20,258,763 20,404,500
e T Sieaesr 20,000 1.579,950 80,175,050 91.?55,00!‘]_
Corme Do =576 162678 23861322 . 23 824 000
423,018 6,176,545 678,195,054 632.3?'2,5!)&_

ke Y
.
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In 2011, Land Bank of the Philippines, engaged by the Company to conduct-an
Jnspection and appraisal of its properties “situated in. the different areas inthe
Philippines, disclosed that the property located in Dasmarifias, Cavite with a total

area of 75,000 sgm. is not titled and registered undef the name, of the Companry.

g D:,3marimemrﬁﬁﬂw&ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%aﬂt&'IndUStriai‘Eﬁlﬁat‘e {FGI;EWHW-':‘-—"M-M
joint wenture project of the National Development - Company (NDC),- Marubeni
Corporation, and Japan International Develnpment.nrganiza&an (JAIDO). The

75 000 sq.m. lot was excluded from the Contract of Sale executed between the
c:ompany and NDC on April 07, 1983, which covers the sale of the Company’s
saveral parcels of property to NDC. On April 10, 1992, the Committee on
Privatization (COP) approved the sale of the property to NDC at a price not lower

than P150/sq.m. The Asset Privatization Trust (APT), huwawgr..suggested that the

price should instead be P180/sq.m. The sale was not consummated due to the
disagreement in the price 10 be-used, Thereafter, the properly was developed by. -
NDC. absent any'contract of sale yet. - ' .

i)

The Dasmarifas property is supported by a Transfer Certificate of Title (TCT) No.
r.05739 which was cancelled after the sale in April 1983. The Company was not
b= o acquire a new TCT under its name for the remaining lots but is conducting
further negotiations with NDC for compensation on the property.

s discussed in Note 14, the Company, in its Motion for Reconsideration dated
March 13, 2014, prayed that the Department of Justice order the NDC to pay.-the
Company the value of the 7.5 hectares of Dasmarifias property which was excluded
- the Contract of Sale but developed and sold by NDC to locators of the First Cavite
Industrial Estate (FCIE), plus legal interest thereon from the time of demand up to
the actual date of payment. - ' :

This account includes the following:

lswcalsnd  Bulidings&  Construction  Transportation
|moravements  Imorovemeants Equipmant - Egquipment Othars Total

Al December 31, 2014 : . :
Sasl 37,004,340 23,286,350 44,030,230 44,816,789 157,232,634

125,803,550)  (22.418.443)  (4D434,7680) [41,276,367) (133,207,774}

(L]

LI ¥ )

e}

Ancumulated Depraciaton

m o
ap il an
il

- -

=4fbr ¥

Het Book Value 78,251 11,010,781 ~ 849,907 - 3,595,479 839,402 24,024,860
Appraisal lncrease £35,213.255 67,759,775 7.827 127 - 407,472 2471117 617,278,450
Accumulaled Depracizticn r31.271.550) (45,659,513) (7,826,972) (107,172) (2467,185) (78,332,438} -
_':ﬂ{ELgc;k value 517,041,868 21,100,256 15 0. 3832 539,045,012
515 870050 32411031 850062 3 _ 0.8
il ] * 5
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in 9011 Land Bank of the Philippines, engaged by the Company to conduct an
.inspection and appraisal of its properties situated in. the different areas inthe
Philippines, disclosed that the property located in Dasmarifias, Cavite with a total
area of 75,000 sg.m. is not titled and registered undéf’ihg_gj'gm%,cf the Company.

The -B;;:;rf;riﬁaﬁimﬂﬁwﬁﬁﬁm%ﬂfﬂaﬂm'lndu‘&iﬂ'ﬂi'_E_!'".t'*a't"ﬂ' (FEIE)™
ioint venture project of the National Development  Company (NDC), Marubeni
Carporation, and Japan International Development . Organization (JAIDQ). The
75 000 sq.m. lot was excluded from the Contract of Salé executed between the
Cermpany and NDC on April 07, 1083, which covers the sale of the Company’'s
several parcels of property to NDC. On April 10, 1992, the Committee on
Privatization (COP) approved the sale of the property to NDC at a price not lower
inan P450/sq.m. The Asset Privatization Trust (APT), however, suggested that the
price should instead be P180/sg.m. The sale was not consummated due fo the

disagreement in the price to be-used. Thereafter, the property was developed by-

NDC, absent any“contract of sale yet.

The Dasmarifas property is supported by a Transfer Certificate of Title (TCT) No.
T_6a730 which was cancelled after the sale in April 1983. The Company was not
able to acquire a new TCT under its name for the remaining lots but is conducting
further negotiations with NDC for compensation on the property.

fs discussed in Note 14, the Company, in its Motion for Reconsideration dated
March 13, 2014, prayed that the Department of Justice order the NDC to pay.the
Company the value of the 7.5 hectares of Dasmarifias property which was excluded
in the Contract of Sale but developed and sold by NDG to locators of the First Cavite
Industrial Estate (FCIE), plus legal interest thereon from the time of demand up to
the actual date of payment. : . '

&, 10, PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

This account includes the following:

Land & Land . Buildings &  Construction  Transportation

o I it e R

B - |morovemnanis  Improvaments Equipment Equipment D‘thérs Total

Al December 31, 2014 i " i :

Cosl +5,115.838 37,804,340 '_23.233.350 - 44030238 41,915,768 157,232,634
_Acoumulated Desrat 320 2E5345)  (26,853,550) (22.416,443) (40,434,760) (41,276,387) {133,207,774)
_Net Bouok Value 7.529,291 11,010,781 © §49,907 - 3535479 639,402 24,024,860

Aapraisal Incresse 535,213,258 67,759,775 T.827.127 - 407,172 2471117 817,378,450

Accumulated Degrecieion {24 271.590) (48,859,519) (7,828,872) (107,172) {2,457,185) (78332428}
‘Net Book Value £17,841,669 21,100,256 155 0 3,932 539,046,012

S 25570650  32111,031 BED.062Z 3595479 643,334 563,070,872

s a
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Transportation

land &Land  Buildings:&  Consirisclion

Improverignts  Improvements Equipmant Equipment Othars Total
Cost i d -
Opening Wet Book Valus 7,529,291 11,010,781 849,507 3,595,479 B39401 24,024,850
o o =0 o 56,890 56,890
o alsiwrite off g A0 STREAEEE00) '{41&.354} q45.445: (508,708)
ints ] = .

0 ft L. 'L’;.,. T T S | e 1<) RN ¥ L S | o el BB EARY, e ARADT -
asi 7,676,678 9,434,360 ?9?,019 1 52&132 181 .423 19 912,512 ]
.l| :
0 Het Book Value 517,941,663 21,100,256 155 (1] 3,933 539,045,013
<al Adjustment 230,854,310 (1,762,805) 1] (1] 0 229191,705
L off o] 0 0 o o v]
D n for the Year 0 (969,251) 0 0 0 {959,251)
Glosing Ket Book Value 745,895 579 18,368,400 4155 1] 3,933  TET,268467
i_ . AL Decamber 31, 2016 '
Qﬁj 10,115,936 37,504,340 22,689,448 34,857,176 41,458,347 147,165,247 s
coumaiatsd Depreciation {2,239,358)  (28.460/980)  (21,802.429)  (33334,044) (41,316,824) (127.252.735)
Q}:} 5_@_ Book Value 7,876,578 9,434,360 797,019 1623132 181423 19,912,542
Appraisal Increase 770,167 568 65,887,170 TBITAZT . 107,172 2471117 B46,570,155
ulated Depreciation (21:271,590)  (47.628.770) (7,826,972 107 47 457,184 8301
_Net Book Value 748,895,879 18,368,400 155 0 3,933 767,268,467
756,772,557 27,802,760 797,174 1,623,132 185,356 787,180,979

10.1 Appraisal

The Company e'ng:agegd the services of the following independent and recognized
appraisal’ companies for the appraisal of some of its designated properties,

structures, buildings, fence, and street lightings:

APPRAISAL INCREASE

APPRA:SAL CORPORATION

" YEAR (DECREASE)
| lin thousand pesos)
1997 .General Appraisal Co., Inc
69.71
1,620.00 Various
0.05 Various
(235.56) . Various
145.208 Various
el (16.523) Land Bank of the F"hIJS . B
2533 17.591 Cuervo Appraisers, In::_" and CAL-FIL -
- Appraisal & Management, Inc.
2015 456.941 CAL-FIL Appraisal & Management, Inc.,

T== Company also owns some 278,477 sq.m. of property, with a total value of
F174.127 millien, located in different areas of the country which are not yet
recorded in the books, as the same are still regmtered in the name of previous
The Company is working on the transfer of title to its name.

owWners.

Asset Consult, Top Consult &Royal Asia




'OTHER ASSETS

This account consists of:-

2015 2014

Fosicted cash L 100,327,360 . 100,327,380 -
.i‘-.f;m unts receivables-trade ... 50879182 50879182
F3.-.-'.-“E- vahles from officers and Emptr:ryees ' 12,681,589 12,581,589
Deferred charges 107,789,748 49,383,528
Ciuarantee deposits ; 71,072,000 71,072,000
Miscellanegus deposits 1,231,639 1,224,542
Other assets s 429,178 - 471,337
- 344,310,696 285,939,538
assets for write off 9,615,422,219 9,615,422 219
Allowance for losses " (9,615,422,213) {9,615422 219)
_ ~ T e 0
Other assets 694,807,068 . 713,606.857
Allowance for doubtful accounts s (694,807,068) (713,608,857)
S S 0
- 344,310,696 . 285,939,538

The Company has P100.327 million restncted cash, which amount is used as collateral
f=_.. he issuance of the appeal bond re; Ernesto N. ‘u"alentln et.al, vs. PNCC. Thecashis

1eld in custody by the Company's banks and Is restricted as to withdrawal or use pending
the decision by the National Labor Relations Commission (NLRC) on the said case filed
by formear PNCC employees against the Company.

Accounts receivable-trade is for operating.access fees due from oil companies totaling
PE0.ATY million, of which P46.728 million was referred to Legal for appropriate action,
F7 A48 milian is subject of an on-going recongiliation, and P1.505 million is being paid on
23l mert asis. One of the oil companies referred to Legal had informed the Company
ozt tma fmos for ﬂajﬂnent of the royalty fees are in escrow because of the Writ of

a in 2005 prohibiting it from making any payments to the Company.
raingly be made once the garnishment is lifted.

T
l:'l.:l
J
CI '5[‘

c20 25 ‘rom officers and employees consist of cash advances granted tu the former
=~z smployees of the Company in the amount of P12AQB million and former
s z=r olan equity balance of P0.084 mllimn

s‘c' penefit of unused tax credits of P95.983 million and the excess of the
~.r Corporate Income Tax (MCIT) over the regular corporate income tax of
77 miliion (Note 28). :

- .zramize ceposits account pertains specifically to the guarantee/collateral for the
wyasiors Assurance Corporation {tAC} Bond No. Gf{16) 0015764 in. favor of 1AC
smmounting to P71.072 million. This is also in connection with the Emesto N. Valentin,
et.al vs, PNCC,

zfz--2= smargas account consists mainly of the deferred tax-assets recognized for the ,

o e g e 42
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Assets for write-off account consists of assets, the existence of which is doubtful 'gnd
collectibility/realizability is uncertain: :

-

Fecelvables and advances
Froparty and equipment
'u“red charges

AT R i rr1-rir LT - ——

4,139,136,000
~2,87.2;888;000

.. 1,755,663,000

Inventaries 511 342, 000
Investment in stocks 179,798,000
Fre-operating expenses 1_37.323._9130
Aocounts receivable-long term - 12,000,000
Invesiment in joint ventures 4,563,000
iMiscellaneous daposits 1,897,000
Guarantes deposils 842,000

' 8,615,422,000

Thase accounts have been provided a 100 per cent allowance for losses.

The Company, in its letter of June 03, 2014, requested authority from the Commission on
Audit (COA) to adjustiwrite-off the aforesaid long outstanding accounts in consonance
witn COA Circular No. 97-001 dated February 05, 1997. As of December 31, 2015, no

decision has been made by COA.

Dther assets, which have also been prowded wlth 100 per cent allowance for doubtful

accounts, are as follows:

e - 2015 2014
Accounts receivable-subsidiaries and affiliates 240,286,465 240,323,379
Other accounts receivables 175,200,317 176,200,317
Eilled contract receivables 90,522,501 109,285,376
Advances to joint venture, net 74,021,620 . 74,021,620
L z2ounts receivable-trade 60,149,526 60,149,526

aims receivable 24,406,064 - 24 406,064
varoes 1o subsoniraciors 17,169,107 17,169,107
6,802,733 6,802,733
2,380,025 2,380,025
2,190,126 2,190,126
636,431 836,431
636,088 636,088
234,456 234 458
171,609 171,609
694,807,068 713,608,857

ientation is completad,

Zompany will regquest authority from COA to wnta-nff the accounts as soon as

" e




12. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

This account consists of the following:

g . SR 2014
Accounts payable cepewmos. T TR 30,600,749 27,146,554
_ACCrUed EXPENSES | . | . L. s i o 8813 T s B003.550
' Customers'’ deposits 13,048,984 11,025,882
' 50,462,850 45,075,986
12,1 Accounis payable I
| 2015 2014
o~ Vouchers payable 30,302,076 26,361,815
L - CESLA savings and loan dues 198,172 126,605
i;_‘E:';:f;v' Other accounts payable _ 100,501 -~ 658,134
- 30,600,749 -~ 27,146,554.
& _ e %
ouchers payable are liabilities to suppliers of goods and services and to
government agencies as regard the mandatory deductions from the employees’
compensation and taxes withheld on income payments to suppliers of goods and
services ;
Other accounts payable as of December 31, 2015 consists mostly of ave_r_withheld
{ax on compensation refunded to the concerned officers and employees in January
2018,
12.2 Accrued expenses
Accrued expenses account of P8.813 million as of December 31, 2015 includes
7~ acerual of the mandatory benefits and leave credits of the Company’s employees, .
K unpaid professional fees and unpaid accounts to suppliers of goods and services
{hat are normally settled within_12 months from the reporting period.
@

=k
ra
o

Cusiomers’ deposits

Customer's deposit account consists of one month deposit and two months .
acvance rental paid by tenants from the leased FCA property and 10 per cent bid .
deposit posted by winning bidders with regard to the Company's disposal of assets .

and scrap materials. . 3 ;

%3 DUETO NATIONAL GOVERNMENT AND ITS INSTRUMENTALITIES

This account consists of payables for the following:

| 2015 2014
Concession fees (TRE) ' 5,270,431,000  5,012,428,800
Toll revenue (SLEX cperation under TOC) 1,537,850,967 1,537,850,967
Joint venture companies’ revenue/dividends 1,329,017,649 1,329,017,649

8,137,209,616  7,879,297.416

o A

2
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The SC directed TRB, with the assistance of the Commissicn on Audit (COA), to prepare
nd finalize the Implementing Rules and Guidelines (IRG) for the determination of the
moLnts that the Gompany is entitled for its administrative expenses.

pE——

This account covers various advances from the Nafional Development Company (NDC)
totaling P214 million between 1990 to1999 for foreign and peso accounts and interest
and penalties thereon of P989 millicn as of December-31, 2009. The issue covering the
various advances from NDC is under arbitration before the OGCC Avrbitral Tribunal:

NDC. Petitioner vs. PNCC, Respondent (OGCC ARB Case No, 001-2000)

fased on the submitted pleadings and supporting documents, the following issues
appear to be clear: : ’ :

» Whether respondent is liable to pay petiﬁnnar the -.pl‘in‘;':_'tpal amount of the
Promissory Notes plus acerued interest and penalties as provided in the said
Notes, and the Documentary Stamp Tax necessary for the execution thereof;

» Whether respondent is liable to pay/reimburse petitioner the amount of
-espondent's mortgage loan (Including interest thereon) that petitioner paid in
order to release the titles -of the properties that petitioner bought from the
respondent: and _ _ gl w ;

» \Whether petitioner must pay the value of the lot consisting of 7.5 hectares which
petitioner developed with its Joint Venture partner despite the fact that said lot
was specifically excluded in the Contract of Sale. '

The Depzrtment of Justice (DOJ), In its February 18, 2014 Consolidated Decision,
.;_: in= NDC's Petition against the Company, the dispositive portion of which

~-.ev2r 2 Petition filed by NDC against PNCC is GRANTED. As
-~z =1 7ar, respondent PNCGC is ordered; (1) to pay pelitioner NDC the
-wi~-z zmount of the Promissory Notes, plus accrued inferests and
= =2¢ crovidad for in the said Notes; and (2) to reimburse petitioner
~r = martgage loan including interest thereon.”

0

2014, KDC wrote the Company - claiming 'paz.rmant of the various

~: zyardzd to the latter pursuant to the aforesaid Consolidated

[ B L O
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Concession fee

charges of P258 million in 2015 and P3.852 billion in 2014 and prior.years) pertain to the
Company's payable-o-the Toll Regulatory Board (TRB) pursuant to thie Toll Operation
Agreement (TOA) dated October 1977. The Company is being charged of two per cent

The.concession fees of P5.270 billion (principal amount of P1.06 billion plus penalty

... o i

senalty charges per migith on“unpﬁi&“ﬂﬂhﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ‘?éﬁ#’ﬂhfﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁ'ﬁ?z o overPast™

million annually.

From May 2008 to March 20089, the Company made initial payments to the Buréau of the
Treasury (BTr) totaling P220 million, of which the latter confirmed application of the P170
million against outstanding concession fees while the P50 million was unilaterally applied
oy the BTr against an outstanding advances from the National Government (NG).

on July 16, 2010, the Company remitted to the NG, through the BTr, the amount of P200

millian to be applied to outstanding concession fees. However, the BTr applied only P100°

million and the other P100 million against advances from NG.

These payments bring the Company's total remittances to P485 million from 20086 to
report date,

Inremitted share in the toll.revenue

Fursuant to the Supreme Court En Banc Decision discussed in Note 1, the Company
recognized in the books the unremitted share in the toll revenue for the operation of the
South Luzon Expressway (SLEX) under the Toll Operation Certificate from May 2007 to
April 2010 in the amount of P1.537 billion, based on the Toll Regulatory Board's (TRB)
computation, which accordingly was arrived at by deducting from gross toll revenue the
allowable 40 per cent operations-and maintenance (O&M) expenses or actual O&M
expenses, whichever is lower. S :

Joint venture companies’ revenueal/dividends

Ae discussed in Note 1, the expiration of the Company's frandji'semzﬂu? rasulted in the L

National Government's (NG) owning the toll fees and the net income derived from the toll
-scets and facilities and also the Company’s percentage share in the toll fees collected by
‘he Joint Venture Companies (JVCs) currently operating the tollways.

In line with the above and pending finalization of the Implementing Rulesand Guidelines

(IRG) relative to the determination of the net income remittable by the Company to the

NG, the Company initially récognized its obligation to the Government in the amount of
1329 billion (net of the direct remittance of the consigned monies of P337.54 miSon 1o
the BTr on December 23, 2011).

The aforesaid amounts were computed at 80 per cent of the gross revenue share and
dividends received from May 2007 to December 31, 2010. Thisis in-accordance with the
interim rules and guidelings issued by the Toll Regulatory Board (TRB) in compliance with
i decision of the Supreme Court (SC) in the Francisco Case (Note 1).
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Preferred "B"

(§-17 per cent cumulative,
non- participating, _n_cri.-‘l.rating]

Authorized- 42,414,879
shares _
jasued and outstandini ‘"""‘“FtE‘p’i,Iﬁﬁd'ﬁﬁﬁé’fﬁﬁb‘ﬁh’ﬁ?ﬁ"“*"& ey e
_Through the APT (now PMO) -
15 000,000 Shares previously under PNB 150,000,000
3.6R9 500 Shares Marubeni 36,895,000
~ 18,689,500 _ ) 186,895,000
Preferred "C"
{14 per cent cumulative, non-
participating, non-voting) - e
Authorized- 6,485,121 shares . 5
lssued and outstanding Republic of the Philippines
Through the APT (now PMO) -
5485121 Shares - previously under NDG. - : 64,851,210
Preferred "0
(B per cent cumulative,
narticipating, voting)
Authorized-27,800,000
shares
issued and outstanding ' _
B 25,500,000 Shares PMO (previously under PNE) 255,000,000
Special common
[non-vating, No pre-emptive
right, participating)
Authorized-10,000,000
shares _
lssued and outstanding _
3,815 Shares Carlito C. Paulino 38,150
457 Shares Editha U. Cruz 4,570
378 Shares Adolfo S. Suzara 3,760
129 Shares Vicente Longkino® 1,250
Treasury Stocks . &
295,227 Shares Formerly held by PNCC™ 2,952,270
Employees Savings & Loan
_ Association) :
72,168 Shares Formerly held by Alfredo V. 721,680
. Asuncion '
372,472 3,721,720




Subscribed-

FEBTC Trustee-PNCC Stock

1,484,260 Shares Trust Fund : 14,842,600 .
Adthorized-182,200,000 ———
shares i i
lssued and outstanding- ; : i
74, 271402 4mmirs Shares. ..« Republic-of the-Philippines. -~ ~ i . i
Through the APT (Now PMO) -
“previously under: L%
Phil. Export Foreign Loan
Guarantee 375,845,770
Development Bank of the Phils. 269,874,470
o National Development Co. 146,990,000
47,490,383 Shares Gov't Service Insurance System 474,803,830
%7 15,360,831 Shares Universal Holding Corperation 153,608,310
g811,543 Shares . Various Brokers o 58,115,430+,
4 552,384  Shares Various Corporations - 45,623,840
1,178,856 Shares Cuenca Investment Corporation 11,788,560
Pioneer Insurance and Surety
054,800 Shares Corporation 9,648,000
B57,836  Shares Land Bank of the Philippines 6,578,360
335,391  Shares PNCC Employees @ 3,353,910
7,037,935 Shares individual (Non-employees) 70,379,350
163,670,983 1,636,709,830
Subscribed- -
§ 419,915 Shares Universal Holding Corporation " 94,199,150
ang.276 Shares Cuenca Investment Corporation 9,092,760
149,328 Shares Various Corporations - 1,493,280
e 33,391 Shares PNCC Employees 333,910
4 27,593 Shares Various Brokers 276,930
i o 234 173 Shares Individual (Non-employees) - 2,341,730
10,773,776 ; : 107,737,760
228 375,812 GShares ' 2,283,756,120
) Subscriptions receivable (Note 17) (56,158,831)

2,227,599,289 -

The cumulative preferred chares are those that are entitled to any dividends not declared
in the pricr period (dividends in arrears) such that when dividends arg_.dedared in the

 _urrent period, the dividends in arrears are to be satisfied first..

Dividends (in arrears) on cumulative preferred shares are not recognized in the books -
due to the Board of Directors’ non-declaration of dividends. Such action of the PNCC
Board is supported by Article XI, Section 11.01 of the Amended Corporate By-Laws which
provides that “Dividends maybe declared annually or oftener as the Board of Directors
may determine. The Board of Directors may declare dividends only from the surplus

arofits of the Company.”




For purposes, however, of the required disclosure in the financial statements, the
dividends in arrears {computed from 2007 to 2015) are as follows:

\ - Undeclared
Name of Stockholders Class of Stock Shareheldings Dividend
) ()] i B s [E) (b XGx9yrs)
Republc of the Phil. Preferred "B™ (B per : i _
TGl thePME=-gent- 1T~ PET  CeMt e eSS
(previously under PNB)  cumulative, non-

participating, non-voting) 150,000,000 - 108,000,000

Marubeni Preferred “B"- (B per
cent-17 per cent, -
cumulative, . non-

oarticipating, non-voting) 36,895,000 26,564,400

@)

Republic of the Phil. Preferred "C* (14 pér
Through the PMO  cent, cumulative, non- i
(previously under NDC)  participating, non-voting) 64,851,210 81,712,525

Republic of the Phil. Preferred D" (8 .per
Through the PMO cent, . cumulative, ' non- _

_{previously under PNB) participating, non-voting) 255,000,000 183,600,000
. 506,746,210 399,876,925

The above dividends in arrears are not recognized as liabilities because there is no
obligating event yet. -

17. SUBSCRIPTIONS RECEIVABLE

N This account represents the unpaid amount due from the following subscribers on

1% subscription of the Company’s shares of stock, the due dates of which are, by agreement,
of valid call by the Board of Directors: o i

Universal Holding Corporation - _ 48,302,274

Cuenca Investment Corporation _ - 5.145.25?

Other Corporations 966,630

Individuats : 1,744,640

' 56,158,831

s of the-end of 2015, there was no call made by the Board 6f Directors for the unpaid
subscriptions, ' i,

18. FQUITY ADJUSTMENTS

Under Rehabilitation Plan-Loans Transferred to National Governiment (NG)

This account represents substantial portion of the Company's liabilities to Government
Fimancial Institutions (GFls) which should have been converted into equity pursuant to

- -y
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= aeinental Leter of Instrugtion (LOI) No. 1295 dated February 23, 1983, and liabilities to

tne government agencies transferred to the Government pursuant to Proclamation No.
50 jssued by the President of the Philippines on December 8, 1986.

(In'thousand pesos)

Philippine National Bank el sy e 865,445
National Development Company ~— ' 1,358,

Philguarantee 1,204,311
Central Bank of the Philippines ol 75,654
Bureau of the Treasury ; : 39,991
Development Bank of the Philippines 9,633
' 5,651,727

“The above-mentioned Company indebtedness remains unconverted as it is the
Company's position, as supported by the Office of the Solicitor General (©SG) opinien —

dated August 23, 2007, that based on LOI 1283, which was a special law promulgated to

rehabilitate the Company, the debts have effectively been converted to equity and,

therefors, should no longer incur interest charges.

The Privatization Management Office (PMO), however, still considers these unconverted
danbts as Labilities, claiming the total amount of P57.919 billion as of December 31, 2015
and P54.91 billion as of December 31, 2014, inclusive of accumulated interest charges
and penalties amounting to P52.407 billion and P49:398 billion, respectively.

These amounts have not been recngnizéd in the books of the Company. The Company
el not recognize the disputed interest charges and penalties based on the following:

. The Supreme Court (SC) itself had recognized the validity of LOI 1295 and that t
still legally exists today,

. The failure to convert all debts to equity is considered an administrative matter;

and

. The P5.552 billion is not a debt but simply represents unissued shares of stocks
awaiting actual conversion to equity pursuant to LOI 1285 and, as such,
continued imposition of interests and penalties is-not warranted.

The above position of the Company is supported by the Dfﬁca of the Solicitor General
(0SG) and the Office of the Government Corporate Counsel {OGCC). )

In like manner, the Bureau of the Treasury (BTr) is claiming as of December 31, 2015 the
amount of P2.717 billion {inclusive of P1.308 billion interest)- representing advances
made by the BTr to settle the Company's foreign obligations with creditors. It is the
Company's position that said loans are included in the Equity Adjustments under
Rehabilitation Plan which are among the accounts transferred by the Company to the
Government through the Asset Privatization Trust (APT) pursuant to PNCC's
Rehabilitation Plan of 1987 and are no longer recorded as. liabilities in the Company
hooks, As such, the Company is precluded from servicing the accounts. ‘

-




—

@

- view of the differences on the treatment of the p5.552 billion unconverted debt o,

Az discussed in Note 13, the application of the P50 million and P100 million payments in.
3008 and 2010, respactively, against outstanding NG advances were already effected in
e q;‘mes;ai::' confirmed amount of P2.717 billion. ' '

PNCC, Petitioner Vs 5MO. Respondent (OSJ Cas‘é Mo. 1'.'.1_2-2131 2)

The parties entered into a Joint Stipulation of Facts and Issues identifying the issues,

as follows!

5 Whether or not PNCC is indebted to the National Government in the amount of
p5.4 hillion which, inclusive of interests as of October 31, 2011, amounted to

e51.060 billion;

_ hether or not the unconverted debt to equity, which is 2 leftover of LOI 1285,

=nould be considered as simple loan;

3 \Whether or not the unconverted portion of CDCP's debts are liable for interest
and penalty charges; and ' - :

» \Whether LOI No. 1295 repealed the general provisions of R.A. 337 General

Banking Act, as amended, the charters of DBP (RA. 85, as amended), PNB (FD
694), and LBP.(RA. 3844), which all restricted the GFl's exposure to non-allied
industries.” & -

’-.::Z]ui'\‘_-,', tne Company and the PMO resolved to submit the matter to the Départment of
lystice (DOJ) for arbitration: | iem——m R R o e

The DOJ, in its February 18, 2014 Consolidated Decision, dismissed the Company's

Patition against PMO, the dispositive portion of which reads:

WWHEREFORE, premises considered, the Petition filed by the PNCC
against the PMO, is hereby DISMISSED. As prayed for by the respondent
o0, petitioner PNCC is hereby ordered to pay respondent PMO, in behalf
of the National Government, the amount of P51,060,330,392.40 as of 31
October 2011, representing its due and demandable obligation to the latter,
inclusive of the interests, plus interests and penallies until actually paid.”

The Company filed a Motion for Reconsideration (MR) dated March 13, 2014, ﬁul:,r

| rpoeived at the DOJ on March 14, 2014. The Company prayed that the DOJ consider-

ihe consolidation as not proper and decide on 0SJ Case No. 02-2012 separately:

% Render judgment declaring that the interest and penalty charges being impase,d'
by PMO on the actual outstanding debt of PNCC to the National Government is
without basis and violative of LOI 1398, :

% Declare that PNCC's outstanding debt to the National deamrnént is only in the
amount of P5.4 billion, representing the value of the L_Jnmn\_.rartad debt-to-equity
obligation to the Government Financial Institutions (GFls); and




%= Require or direct the debt-to-equity conversion of the IF_‘5.4 billion debt of PNCC .
pursuant to the clear and exp}lcit‘lnstruutinns under LO11285. '

|._;E':| January 22, 2015, D0J denied PNCC's Motion for Remnsidar%ﬁon (MR). PNCC .
fled a supplement to the MR on Wa-28, 2015 which g,;-as_-ahﬁ denied by the DOJ en

its order dated July 13, 2015.

o June 26, 2015 PHCC filed 2 Motion

A L T et Er e E—

for Appeal at the Office of the President (OP) of

ife Philippines and filed the corresponding appeal msmnrandurn'on-.}uw 27,2015,

[he Company is awaiting far the resolution of the OP.

ﬂ’i’éﬁsvsmﬁmu SiVIDEND SHARE FRO

[

‘This account consists of the following:

M JOINT VENTURE GDMFAN'I_EE

2014

ok I 2015
Finvehue Share ki
MNTC 43,649,658 39,855,949
CMMTC 27,666,205 25,281,618
_SLTC ' 12,586,932 7,727,181
T 83,802,795 72,964,748
Cividend Share :
CMMTC 36,423,420 26,219,320
TMC = 0 6,686,000
T 36,423,420 32,905,320
120,226,215 105,870,068

ns discussed in Note 13, pending issua

revenues in accordance with the interim |

nce of the Implementing Rules and Guidelines

(IRG) for the determination of the amounts due to the Company for its administrative
syvpenses by the Toll Regulatory Board (TRB) and the Comrnission on-Audit (COA), the
Company recognized 10 per cent of its share from the joint venture companies gross toll

rules and guidelines issued by the TRB.

2alative to the aforesaid interim rules and guldalines,' a complaint (entitied: Rodolfo M.
~uenca vs, Toll Regulatory. Board, et., al., Civil Case No. 13-919) was filed before the
= anianal Trial Court (RTC) of Makati Branch 132 by petitioner Rodolfo M. Cuenca, in his

=Egid

caasity as stocknalder of the Company, against the Toll_Regulatory Board (TRBJ,
~armiséion on Audit (COA), Manila North Tollways Gorporation (MNTC), CITRA Metro

(4znila Tollways Corporation (CMMTC),
trania Toll Expressways Systems, Inc. (

South Luzon Tollways Corporation (SLTC) and
MATESI) and the Company as respondents.

—ha franchise of PNCC under PD 1113 to operate, construct, and maintain toll facilities

- tne North and South Luzon Tollways for a period of 30 years expired on May 1, 2007.
\With its expiration, the toll assets and facilities of PNCC were automatically turned over .
in the government al no cost. The Supreme Court (SC), in Emesto B. Francisco vs.
"RB, PNCC et. al. {G.R. Nos. 166910,160017, 173630, and 183588, October 19, 2010)
znd in the case of Strategic Alliance Development Corporation vs. Radstock Securities

e e g 1 )
[

.

——— —
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Limited et. &l (G.R. No. 178158, December 04; 2009), ruled and declared that with the
expiration of the Co mpany's franchise, the toll assets and facllities of the Company were
~utomatically turned over, by operation of law, to the National Government (NG) at no

,* and conseguently, this inevitably resulted in the latter's owning too the toll fees and

the net income derived a_ffg@[_ﬁ,_igy 01, 2007 from the tall_asaets and facilities, including e
the Company's percentage share in the toll fees collected by the joint venture
~ompanies currently gperating the .talhuays-,uimlpﬂingvblh@&-and Slaphays. - - o T

On March 22, 2012; the TRB issued aninterim rules and guidelines for the remittance by
ine Jy Companies to the National Treasury of the net.income that is supposed to be
cemitied by the JVCs from the revenues of the NLEX, SLEX and- kyway in accordance

with the Francisco Case,

Paragraph 2 of the said guidelines provide ﬂlat.‘Assuhsequenﬂy agreed upon by PNCC
and TRB as an interim arra ngement, 10 per cent of all amounts that are supposed ta be
remitted by the JV companies shall be set-aside by the JV company for remittance {o
oNGC.  The 90 per cent shall be remitted fo the TRB for the National Treasury
immediately.” . '

In his petition, Cuenca said that "there is the very real possibility that what the
respondent corporations MNTC. CMMTC, SLTC and MATES have remitted, and will be
remitting, to the NG IS above or much more than what shouid be remitted given the
sctual and true financial situation of the respondent corporations. This gives rise to the
unfortunate complication that such overpayments may only. be reimbursed by the NG

inrough cumbersome, 10 53y the least, budgetary process.’

Thus, petitioner is praying for the Honorable Court, that:
% The respondents TRB and CGOA come uhwith and release the final implementing
rules and guidelines embodying the final formula relative to the determination of
the net income remitiable by respondent PNCC to the NG;

% Tnatthe respondent corporations be enjoined from remitting any and all amounts
directly to the NG until respondents TRB and COA have issued the final
implementing rules and guidelines; and .

% The respondents be ordered to consign with the Honorable Court any and all
amounts they are ready to remit to the NG until the final implementing rules and
guidelines has been issued by TRB and COA.

On May 9, 2014, a Writ of Preliminary Injunction was issued by the RTC of Makati Branch
132, enjoining and restraining the TRB and PNCC from implementing the interim rules
and guidelines dated farch 22, 2012. The respondent corporations, namely: MNTC,
CMMTC, SLTC and MATES were directed to forward the entire amounts to be remitted
by them under their respective Supplemental Toll Dperaﬁnns'ﬂgreement (STOA) to the

Company.

|t appearing that the government stands -to suffer gravely and irreparably from the
Jforesaid ruling of the RTC as it deprives the government of income based on the
government's direct ownership of the assets and faciliies of the Company, the Supreme

. | 48
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~ourt (SC) resolved, on August 04, 2014, to require respondents to file Comment onthe = ™
petition, nat a motion to dismiss, within ten (10) days from notice and to issue, effective g
immediately and continuing until further orders from the SC, a Temporary R&straining
Order (TRO), enjoining the RTC of Makati Branch 132 the private respondent, their

renresentatives, agents or other persons acting on their behalf frmrg:iq;rp]gmenﬁngfﬂgg.}j__;ﬁ“ ’
RTC Resolution dated April 30, 2014 in Civil Case No. 13-919. i
R e | FEEEE . T S e e ——r S L S P e e i

The -'hé'.-'-.i@ﬁ is.stiil pending resolution before the SC.

70, RENTAL INCOME

This account represents the revenue derived out of the Company's real estate properties
located in the following areas:

Py 2015 2014
P Pasay ik = 95,894,390 86,152,462 - G

Bicutan, Parafiaque o 527,625 703,500

Faorac, Pampanga C 417,010 326,271

Cthers RS 59,471

96,839,025 . ' 87,241,704

Rental income is derived from the Company's properties not used in business and being
leased out to third parties for a certain period, renewable under such terms and
conditions as may be agreed upon byr both pariies. _

[,

21, SERVICE INCOME

o~ ~=iz azcount consists of the following: .
: 2015 2014
= =-+uite structural steel rehabilitation — Philphos 8,078,264 0
= .coy of manpower to Skyway O&M Corporation 2,549,255 B ¢
' 10,627,519 . o

:zm=g Cotober 1, 2015, the Company assumed the operations of DISC Contractors,
' i General Services Ing.' (DCBGSI), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the

Ik 1D iy

2Z. COST OF SERVICES

Tniz azoount consists of the following: -

2015 2014
~abor - " 7,126,596 0.
“iaterials i ; - BOD,287 1]
Equipment operations costs 282,828 o
Cithers : - ¥ = 1 0
“““““ o 8,213,446 0

e, o
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5. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE oﬁERHEAD

el

rris account consists of the followingiz—="—=r" T
o = 3015 2014 .
SalaEe wages, and allowan¢e¥ T T =94 5T9BTT ™ “PAHATAET
c-rmses and gratuities 2,21 2,418 4,327 984
r_r“lp|G',-'E-ES terminal pay - vacation/sick leave 2.160,153 2,180,875
Employess terminal pay - retrenchment 1,552,588 0
Emplayees' welfare 644,017 741,587
SSS/ECC contribution 482,626 428,884
Fringe benefit expense 273,564 1,736,624
‘Sports and recreation 215,605 - 86,739
PhilHealth contribution - - . 152,450.. 145,750.
“ringe benefit tax expense 128,736 817,235
©5-IBIG contribution 41,200 35,500
iizdical and dental expenses 29,367 . 21,275
Employes costs 32,472,335 34,664,597
Shsolete inventory 3,342,039 0
Taxes and licenses 3,072,229 3,249,353
2rpfessional fees 3,028,081 - 3,471,859
*ight and water 2,753,859 3,201,496
Jirectors' fees and allowances - 2,143,882 © . 2,275,176
Sther outside services 1,913,127 - 2,164,016
Transportation and traveling 1,833,649 3,457,283
l.egal and documentation 1,790,092 1,886,442
Security services - salaries of guards/agency fee 1,662,001 1,729,753
Jamitorial and messengerial services 1,374,652 2,093,751
Postage and other communications 946,991 1,036,338
insurance premium 676,840 1,134,391
Repairs and maintenance = matena1sﬂabor 644,078 998,341
Office supplies and stationery 419,088 383,893
Conferences and conventions 247,165 250,879
Advertising and promations - EB,ﬁW' 16,320
fAembership fees 27,600 49,498
Rent expense ; 26,‘”33 0
Entertainment, amusement, and representation 23,324 71,926
ontributions and donations 12,483 0
ranpower recruitment, training, and daueloprnent 8,400 143,113
Subscriptions B,443 17,359
Z2ank charges 6,079 1,250
==zllansous expense 220,599 770,369
Cparating exXDenses 26,240,459 28,402,908
58,712,794 63,067,503
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2015 2014
Depreciation ’ ' 4,629,779 6,252,496
Bad debts/doubtful accounts - ... AL : 0 106,365,821 e
Others e - 4,629,779 112,618,417 FE
s s, e et G S A 2 PG TS 68,0207 o e
24. OTHER INCOME (CHARGES)
This account comprises of the following:
£ : . ._2015 2014
?@”J Gain in change in fair value of investment property 227,749,845 .0 ~
Dividend income 5,194,292 3,174,771
Interest income _ _ 5,727,264 3,588,377
Equity share in Citra Central Expressway . . .
Corporation (CCEC) _ 0 12,500,000 -
Gain in reversal of allowance for inventory . : o
write-down . - 0 ) 1,402,607
Unrealized gain (loss) — available for sale G O
securities : {140,000) 148,000
Gain (loss) on sale of property and equipment (282,556) 633,117
Gain (loss) on sale of inventory n, (367,804) 190,918
Miscellaneous income - * : 6,053,293 77,489
' 244,934,334 . 21,713,279

i~ 25 [NCOME TAXES

The Company’s income tax due for the year 2015is P4 548 mtlh-::m -:::nmputed under the
Minimum Corporate Income Tax (MCIT).

Of the carry forward benefit of MCIT of P14.588 million presanted under “Deferred
Charges” account as of December 31,2015 {ses Note 11), P2.384 million was closed to
Retained Earnings at the beginning of CY 2(}15 due tothe three—year prescription period, - .

as follows:
Date . ' ' Expiry .
incurred Amount Application Expired Balance Date
2015 4 834538 | o] g . {-,'334,533 2018
2014 4016886 ] 0 4,016,686 2017
2013 3,155,276 0 D 3,155,278 2018
2012 2,767,289 0 2,767,289 0 - 2018
14,573,789 0 2,767,289 11,806,500




s of Dacember 31, 2015 and 2014, the following are the temporary differences for which
nn deferred tax asset was setup because the Management believes that it is more likely
hat no future taxable income is available against which the benefit from deferred fax
asaets can be offset;

st i

i immance for losses on:assetsorwrteefh . cam —5,615,422;219 " 9,61 BADR P~ TeaT
Allowance for doubtful accounts £95,236,245 713,988,425
aillawance for inventory write-down 3,342,039 0
Allewance for losses on investments 177,180,811 177,180,811
NOLCO 407,999,112 619,244,592

. 10,899,180,426 = 11 ,125,83,607

Net Cperating Loss Carry-Over (NOLCO) amounting to P 407.999 million can be carried
forward and claimed as deduction from regular taxable income, as follows:

Date & =i . E;cplry

" Incurred Amount Application ~ Expired Balance Date
2074 231,940,280 0 0 231,940,260 2017
2013 176,058,852 0 0 176,058,852 2016

202 211,245,480 0 211,245,480 0 2015

619,244,592 0 211,245,480 407,999,112

=aid benefits, however, cannot be enjoyed for as long as the Company is .subject to
MCIT. : ;

“= of December 31, 2015 and 2014, deferred tax liabilities pertain to the following:

: 2015 , 2014

-+ yalue agustment of investment property 3,179,752,710 3,111,427,757

o~ = =zluation ingrement in property 230,180,540 161,713,803
g’ o 3,409,933,250. ~3,273,141,560

- i=-red tax liabilities pertain to the deemed tax on the increase in value of investment
-==zry 2nd property and equipment as required by "PAS 12, [ncome Tax."

1 i

"2 TAXMATTERS =

The Company was assessed by the Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR) for deficiencies in
warious taxes. However, no provision for any liability has been made yet in the Company’s
financial statements.

~ Deficiency internal revenue taxes for taxable year 1980 (income tax, contractor's tax,
and decumentary stamp tax) totaling P212.52 million. '

| The Company sought a reinvestigation of the case on Novémber 08, 1995, and.as a
consequence, the BIR issued a final decision promulgated on September 09, 2004
ordering PNCC fo pay the amount of P101.46 million, the reduction of P111.87 million
represent deficiency contractor's tax which the BIR resclved to cancel and withdraw
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from the assessment it being bereft of medit for lack of legal basis, thus finding the
Company's contention meritorious. s

The Company, in its letter of February 15, 2005, informed the BIR that it had fisd =
Peiition with the Department of Justice(D0J) seeking thezreversal of the BIR'S
resalution holding the Company still liable for the aforesaid tax deficiencies and has
anplisd for. a0 ipledm..orderser meastre~from the -DOJ~tossuspend-or-atop-ine=—==
collection of subject amount pending resolution of the Petition.

Deficiency business tax of P64 million due the Belgian Consortium, the Company's
nartner in its LRT Project.

Deficiency internatxreve nue taxes for taxable year 1952 (in v:g'rme tax, value-added tax,
and expanded withholding tax) of P1.04 billion which was reduced to P709 million

after the Company’s written protest.

PNCC Management, however, requested for a meeting/conference for the .
clarification of the issue, the reduced amount ‘still being the resuit of a jecpardy
assessment. The BIR has not responded as of date. '

Defigiency internal revenue taxes for taxable year 2002 totaling P72.92 million.

Management, in close coordination with the concemed 'E!H‘ officers, presented a

more detailed analysis of the accounts. Said presentation and the. Company's
availment of the fax amnesf}r_had'subsfanﬁaﬂy-mdmd the aforesaid deficiency

taxes.
Deficiency taxes for taxable year 2006 amounting to 'F"1_15.141 million (inclusive of
interast of P48,76 million). :

Management, in its letter of October 29, 2010 to the BIR, protested the aforesaid
proposed deficiency taxes pursuant to Section 203 of the NIRC of 1997 (Prescription
of limitation upon assessment and collection) and Revenue Regulations (RR) -
Ne.12-89 (which requires discussion between the Company and BIR Examiner/s
before submission of the report to the BIR Chief concerned).

Mo discussion happened as the Company came to know of the findings on the
alleged deficiency taxes only on October 22, 2010, way beyond the three (3) year
prescription perfod of April 13, 2010. : ,

To date, the Company has not received any formal mmmunfca'ﬁan from the BIR affer
its lefer on October 29, 2010 : |

Deficiency internal revenue taxes for the taxable year 2008 in the amount of P87.414
million (basic tax of P51.957 million and iriterest/penalty charges of P35.457 million).

After series of writtan profests/communications with and presentation of documentary
evidences to the BIR, the proposed deficiency taxes of P8T.414 million was reduced
to P21.147 million (basic tax- of P11.384 million and interéstipenalfy charges of
Pa.763 million). : - :

s, = d el
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The basic taxes of P6.565 million (expanded withholding tax, withholding tax on
compensation, and fringe benefit tax) and P4.819 million {’ﬁna!‘udmhufdfng tax) were
x,u:-‘.."c.f on November 28!*2_‘;313 a d-on January 10, 2014, respectively.

Cn Januari 10, 2014, the Company requested reconsideration for the aftendant

“igharges of PE. 763 million; inthe=gmount equitabig o Bt HEBTR @ (e Tt
pursuant to Section 204 of the National Internal Revenue Gode (NIRC) and the
rolaied revenue regulations. . To date, it has not. yet received any formal
cammunication from the BIR on its request.

57 PENDING LAWSUITS/LITIGATIONS -

28.

The Company is involved in.continuing litigations relating to labor and civil cases. The
uliimate outcome of these litigations cannot be determined yet and no provision for-any
liability that may result can be made in the financial statements..

The labor cases consist of those filed against the Company comprised mostly of claims for
illegal dismissal, backwages, and separation pay. Most of these cases have been ruled
by the Labor Arbiter in favor of the complainant. However, these cases are on appeal by
the Company before the National Labor Relation Commission. ' '

The civil cases filed against the Company consist of cases involving damages, collection
of money, and attorney’s fees, which are still in litigation before various Regional Trial
Courts. On the other hand, those filed by the Company against other individuals or
sompanies consist of suits involving sums™of money, damages, and breaches of contract
which involve undeterminable amount of money.

RELATED PARTY TRANSAGCTIONS _

Ihe Company, in the normal course of business, has transactions with related parties.
The more significant of these transactions include: -

Agresments:

+ In 2014, the Company entered into contracts with DISC Contractors, Builders, and
General Services, Inc. (DCBGSI), a wholly-owned subsidiary, for contractual labors
such as janitors and service drivers which were extended until September 30, 2015.
The amount billed by DCBGSI for the period ended Septémber 30, 2015 totaled
F1.543 million. ' :

On October 1, 2015, the functions of the DCBGSI were then transferred to the
Company pursuant to the Company’s proposal which was .approved by the
Governance Commission for Government-Owned and Controlled Corporation
(GCG)L : ; '

« The Company, lawful owner and possessor of a real property situated .at the
Financial Center Area (as lessor), entered into a Contract of Lease with

il i %
i o = 52
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AHEAD-Operations and Nutritional Enterprises, Inc. (as lessee), incorporators and i

stackholders of which are executives and officers of the Company. The parties

rmutually agreed to and accepted the terms and conditions specifically provided for ¥
vin the Contracts of Lease. '

Date of V62 Ratel . —Monthly -

4o o g gy

Particulars . Contract _ _ Leass Frerin:l.m..._ha;'_;.ﬁﬂg,m. O ;1|

. comtractof Lesse 012014  06/011410053115 300 100 - 30,000
2 Conraciof Lease 052014 _ 05/01/141004/30/46 170 112 19,040
470 49,040

For the year ended Decermber 31 , 2015, the Company billed the lessee the amount of
C. P 535 million which amount was fully collected as of reporting date.

AHEAD-Operations and Nutritional Enterprises, Inc.'s Contract of Lease was™not -
renewad after its expiration in ApFil 2015, : g -

Other Transactions
Compensation/other benefits of key management personnel amounted to P14.341

million and P15.538 million for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014,
respeciively, ;

26, RESTATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

The 2014 financial statements were restated to reflect the following
transactions/adjustments and to conform with the presentation of the 2015 financial

statements.
= _———
. December 31,
; 2013 (As January 1,
previously Restatement! 2014

reported) . . Adiustment _ [As restated)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Accounts receivable 595,847,095 594,046,160
al Unrecardad intersst income from placaments in ' :
2013 : v 225,140
b} Unrecorded lease renfal _ T11,420
o) Roversal of PNCC chamges lo ASDI for :
professional fees ~{1,260,000)
d Legal fess recorded as recelvables " {1,277,495)
Other assels ' 325,855,678 - 286,533,430
) Expiration of 2006-2010 Minimum Corporate income Cy
Tax (MCIT) o (38,322,148)
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 114,863,818 y 73,940,733
Deficit (adjustments a 1o e abave) : (40,823,083)




@)

December 31, :
2014 (As - -

previously Restatement/

reported) . Adjustment

Decamber 21,.
2014

{As restated)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIALPOSITION 777 =7 o e

—

C-IIS"'l ::'ll"ll_j_ C.El.fh Fqui_ﬁ'ﬂl!?__ﬁ!!__ R e o ar ST
" Unrecorded Inferest income from “Dlacements in i
2014 302,468

Accounts recalvable ) 419,140,464 _
gl Under ascrual of rental income for 2014 ; 2,061,967
n) Over acorual of 2014 revenus share (7,487 566)

il Deregogrition of revenue recognized in c) and d) : .
abova s g (2,537,498)

investments

] 260,884,252 g
Ji Free carry investment in Citra Canfral Exprassway :

12.500._5@

Corparation on June 30, 2014 77 -
Other assoets 327,625,388
k) Expiration of 2011 MCIT ; (2,363,702
I} Removal from 2014 of the axpired MCIT in &) o )
ahove {39,322,148)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 44 575,886
m) SEC penalty charges for 2014 ) . 500,000
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 110,548,781
Daficit i
n) Expiration of 2011 MCIT {£,363,702)
o) Remaval from 2014 of the revenue recognized in c)
and dj above (2,637,495
nlRemoval from 2014 of ihe expired MCIT in e) '
abova : © . (38,322,148)
Met loss 7,763,863
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Mot loss ; (225,703,372)
Revenua and dividend share from Jaint Ventura
Companies ’ : I
gl Over accrual of 2014 revenue share . "(7,487,565)
Rental incame . il -
rh Under accrial of rental income for 2014 2,861,967
General and administrative overtiead 3 "
s} SEC penalty charges for 201 4 {500,000}
Oifner income : .
& Unrecorded interest income from placements
in 2074 ; 302,468
ul Froe carry investment in Citra Central )
ExpresswayCorporation on June 30, 2074 12,500,000
v} Reversal of 2013 income erronecusly '
recorded in 2074 {936,550)

e -_—

.395&342‘129.-_#'.:;._,"--'.._.'”- MH‘I@‘W s F

412,077,366

273,484,252

286,939,538

45,075,986

146,995,263

(218,863,069)
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The Company presented three Statements of Financial-Position in .compliance’ with the
requirement of PAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements to include in a complete set of
inancial statements a statement of financial position as at the beginning of the earliest
comparative period whenever the entity retrospectively applies an accounting policy or makes
- refrospective restatement of items in its financial statements, or when it reclassifies items in
ils financial statementss ) o

wrr e S SRR T g AT ol e AT

30, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Company's principal financial instruments comprise of cash and cash equivalents,
restructured debt and advances to and from related parties.: The main purpose of these

snancial instruments is to finance the Company's operations. The Company has various

other financial assets and liabilities such as receivables and. accounts payable and

accrued expenses (excluding statutory payables), which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Compariy's-financial instruments are credit risk -and
liquidity risk. The Company’s Board of Directors and the Management review and

approve the policies for managing each of this risk. e i

Credit Risk

Cradit risk arising from the inability of counterparty to meet the terms of the Company's
financial instrument is generally limited to the amount, if any, by .which the counterparty’s
obligations exceed the obligation of the Company. With respect to credit risk arising from
ihe other financial assets of the Company, which comprise of cash, trade receivables and
~dvances to subsidiaties, the Company’s exposure to credit risk arises from default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to' the carrying amount of these
instruments. e .

Liguidity Risk

The Company's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and
flaxitility through the use of cash and shortterm deposits. The Company also monitors - -
its risk to shortage of funds through monthly evaluation of thie projected and actual cash
fow Informaticn. i
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EairValues

Gt out below is a comparison by category of carrying amounts and fair values of all of the
Company's financial nctruments that are carried in the financial statements as of

December 31, 2015 and 2014, e et T
... . CarylngAmount .. oo ogeiplrNalue, o s eo
EeS e s U 2015 - 2014 2015 2014
Financial assets :
Cash and cash 693,740,491 358,342,129 693,740,491 308,342,129
equivalents i
focounts receivable 365,539,337 419,140,464 365,539,337 418,140,454
Receivables from officers .
;jild_ﬁﬂ‘ﬂjli‘}l'EEE 44.,25?.303 42 899 957 44,25?,3'03 42,8099 857
: P 1,103,547,631 860,382.550 1.1 03,547,631 860,3582.550
Financial liabilities
focounts payable and - ) -
scoruad SXpenses 50,462,850 44 512,491 50,462,850 44,612,491
Due to Mational A :
Gavernment and its 8,137,299,616 7,879,297,416 8,137,299;616 7,879,297,418
Instrumentalities : '
[ue to Government : ) L
Cwned or Controlled | 1,203,000,000 1,203,000,000 1,203,000,000 1,203,000,000
Corporation ’ ; ' :
Ciher accounts payable 174,072,000 171,072,000 171,072,000 171,072,000
Trust liabilities 2,768,583 2,768,583 2,768,583 2,768,583
tdvances from contract 1,021,046 . 1,021,046 1,021,046 1,021,046
OWNETS :
9,565,624,085 9,301,671,536 9,565,624,095  8,301,671,536

T SUPPLEMENTARY

REGULATION NO. 15-2010

INFORMATION REQUIRED UNDER -BIR REVENUE

in compliance with the requirements set forth by Revenue Regulation (RR) No. 15-2010,

nereunder are the information on taxes, duties, and licenses paid or accrued during the
taxaple year 2015 L " )

31 1 The Company is a VAT-registered .company, with VAT output tax declaration of
21,372 million for the year based on the amount reflected In the Sales Account of
P178.104 million. '




1.2

r 33

31.4

The amount of VAT input taxes claimed are broken down as follows:
Beginning of the year 0
Current year's purchases:
Gaods for resaleimanufacture or further processing a

Goods other than for resale or manufacture 302,562
Capital goods subject to amortization 0
Capital goods not subject to amortization 6,623
Sarvices lodged under cost of goods sold 0
Services lodged under other accounis 894 218
Claims for tax credit/refund and other adjustments 0
Balance at the end of the year 1,303,403
Oither taxes and licenses.
Laocal:

Real Estate Tax 1,499,340

Mayor's Permit 1,223,786
___ Community tax 10,500 -

Total 2,733,626
Mational: -

BIR Annual Registration 500

WvATIPercentage Taxes 465,339
___Others (CGT/DST) - 26,522

Total ! 492 361

The amount of withholding taxes paid/accrued for the year amounted to P6.372
million, broken down as follows: -

Tax on compensation and benefits 5,605,945
Creditable withholding tax/es 766,551
_Final withholding taxes : 0
Total 6,372,496
mﬁmauornﬂﬁﬂHLﬁﬂﬂmUE
VERS SERVICE
AR YERS ASSITTANCE DIVISION |

RECEIVED
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PHILIPPINE NATIONAL CONSTRUCTION CORPORATION

SCHEDULES Ato K
As of December 31, 2015

Schedule A

Schedule B

Schedula C

Schedule D

Schedule E

Schedqle F

. Marketable Securities {Current Marketable Equity Securities and Other Short-

term Invesiments)

The company's Short-Term Investment as of December 31,2015 amounting fo
FEE9 650 million represents 5.1% only of the total assets of P13.063 billion.
This is way below {he ceiling requirement of 10% or more of the fofal assets,
nencs, this schedule nead not be filed,

_ Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Employees, Related Parties, and

Principal Stockholders (Other than Affiliates)

Corrasponding schedule is herewith attached/submitted. Included in the list
are the company's former employess, officers, and consultants with
autstanding aggregale indebtedness of more than P100,000.00 or ong (1)
percent of the total assets, whichever is less, as of December 31, 2015.

MNon-Current Marketable Equity Securities, Other Long-Term Investments in
Stock, and Other Investments

Tha Investment account which stood &t P144.944 million as of December 31,
2015 constitutes 1.1% of the fotal assets in the related balance sheet
Considering that the account is below the 5% ceiling requirement, the

schedule is omitted.
Indebtedness of Unmnsa'iidatad Subsidiaries and Affiliates
This schedule is omitfed. Total receivables from subsidiaries and affiliates as

of December 31, 2015 in the amount of P9.287 million Is only 0.1% (below the
595 requirement) of the £13.063 billion asseis.

Property, Plant, and Equipment
The company's property, plant, and equipment account amounting to

p787.181 million is 6.% of the P13.063 billion assets (or down by 19% vis-8-
vis the 25% ceiling requirement), hence, the schedule need not be submitted.

- Accumulated Depreciation

The related schedule of the accumulated depreciation account amounting to
£206.554 million is likewise not submitted due fo the reason stated in

Schedule E above.
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PHILIPPINE NATIONAL CONSTRUCTION CORPORATION

SCHEDULES Ato K
&s of December 31, 2015

Schiedule G

Schedule |

Schedule J

Schedule K

- Intangible Assets and Other Assets

The other assets account balance of P344.310 million as of December 31,
2015 comprises 2.6% only (below the 5% requirement) of the P13.063 billion
assels, hence, omitted.

- Long-Term Debt

Applicable account schedule as of December 31, 2015 is herewith
aftached/submitted.

. Indebtedness to Affiliates and Related Parties (Long-Term Loans from Related

Companies)

This schedule is omitted. There is no outstanding payable to subsidiaries and
affiliates as of December 31, 2015.

- Guarantees of Securities of Other |ssuers

Mot applicable.

Capital Stock

Applicable accounf schédule as of December 31, 2015 is herewith
attached/submitted.

- T




HEO'ZSL EETaE S6E°L z0L'9 LY g8l L9g'eal BIT'CLF LEE'E SEETRLY (ETH
(YT 056 FE - E - = - LOF'ED = LE¥ED [s1essy JUALND-UON) [0-qNG _
(] B0 2L TEGTh ZEG eh Soalojiig PUE SIEREH0 Wol SAEAIRITY
LIp'BE BEH'ZT BLE'0S GLE'0S apei] - AQEARORY SIUNODYY
(5)ESSY UBLN]-E0N
nﬁ BLSETE giz'en SBEL Toke ThE'FE 5E8'L JECRT L0B'60F LEHY YZe'0LY ' [Eressy jualng) Ey0-ans
0aL'E 0ZF'BE SEr'l b 52 A i LT Gaaho|dus pue SIaaHCy Wy maEm:Eunx+
gL'0zTL 9GL'SY G6E'L zoL's BIEEL gea'L SLa'Esk 6E5'59E LIV 959'99E BEAEDE FUNOI0Y BI0L
0o0'ostE D005 L 0O0'osE Kinseai] jo neaing o] Sa0UsApy
8 Zh gL gl WISID O] SEOURApY
¥ £ 7 i Lr : srayddng 0] SEUBARY
BE BE 2 sjgauag DDASES M) SEOUBARY
¥ R tZ G5E'6 LLL'E ELE'0L BpEMEIe SN0 SO0
OBE'E £ £ 29z'6 L A {1au) My pUE “SONS - SHYEARDEN SIUNCIY
. ¥BE 9T zig'L Z0L'9 gL G¥Z'9 QL0 £52'F0 £SE'P9 BpEL| - BOEAROEY SN0
250'50 750'59 Z50°54 ayqEAIIDEY SILIRID
56472 561°2 5602 saqqEAE0EH UONUSIY 1ZR0T
109'ZS il oEG' L 654'E LIEES LiE'as SEOEARIIY 1EUaD PAIE
FEZ'L PETL v L SE|BARDYH PEIUOD PRIKUN
‘SlREEY JUSLNT
SiETAG A0 EAT AN GALenolon  SAEQ 06k SAEQOFIE shea o+ oung | Mnoly 1N sunooy oy i
i 1L L RO yi sABC LG FARHINGQ J)
N Ised EELE

[sosad puesnay] ul)
LY "1LE faquadag jo Sy
SaONTAQY 7 S3EVAIRI3Y 40 DNV

HOH LB 100 HOTLINH LSHOD TeHOILYH ANl TTH D




Jgalviddy NYHL HIHLO) S4307

()

jesouees |

766'65 T66'GS " 4 ki = Z66°55
00% ooF oo JUEYNSLOD JAUN0Y opjeufsy] "BIBAL
alv aly aly JuepiSald 83A SANoSXT Jauuog weyeigy 'ueueBining
TED ZE9 ZED aakodwd Jeuu0- BulR]] "OUNEd
0642 0612 06}'E JUBYNSUOD S0 uagny '[enase
0oLk ool ooL'L aafodiug Jeuuod fuuad ‘upme
oaL't 092k oal'l aahojdwg JBuuo Auuad ‘uipie
€7 Pord £Z (‘sa1d @I, JOIUSS) - PESH dnougy JauuoS opunbag 'uojse
0os'L o0s'L 005’k {rsa1d 210 louag) - peaH dnousy Jauod opunbag "UDISELD)

_ 025'68 0Z8'6E 0Z5'6E (-s81d 99IA JOIUSS) - pEsH dnoig JBunod opunBag 'uojse
Z64 i Z6) Z6L safodw3 sawiod opJebp3 'UUED
0Ot 0oE 00e JUBJNSUGSD JBuod B ojuEdu
oS 1 o5k Vs (-dios [eBa) uelsissy [EAIUYDAL JaULIOS uopen 'olEqED
GOL'S 5OL'S 50L'S (-caop [eBa7) WeIsISsY [BIIUYDaL SO uopEy ‘ojieqe
501 i |50t 504 aakojdwy 1auu04 ojjuLa} "oEng
205 ©o| Z0S Z05 030 7 Wapisald IS0 esasely ] B UoDUn
0oz'L oozt 00zt 030 §Wwapjsald Jauued|  BsalaUL BN ‘uoiuns
gcl BEL 8¢l WENSUD] JBuLoS jEnuEp] oo
D0k . | 0ov ooy WEYNSUOD IBUI0S ooEpUCH UREUB)Y

poHad LNy Po-usHuM | P3221190 pouad
jo pug 1=111 JUDLND SYUNOCLLY SPUNOLY SUCINPRY = BuiuuBag Jjaoyqag e uoneubisar pus JWeN
| e soueiea | © | [ enouonasd_ | pe L :

)

(sosad puesnoy | ul F5L0Z “LE daquada jo sy

OHMDOLS TWdIONEd ONY SALHYd 4

3LV

SHEAU Idiia SaduEaal ‘rRuLIa il WoEa 5 GWniSoTe saAcwy 13 SON03RSE

NOILYHOHHOD MOLLONELSHNOD T

(.

WHOILYN IHlddITIHG




‘li

7
sabmp dyleusd |0 aasnpis,
1] LB TROG g [1] DO OFE 6 [EroL
BOOEDE '} OD0E0E b D009 o ¥Rg
GER9SR'T 6589982 SN 0 R0
L00Z0ERD seak e e « BTPIIOG LO0Z0EFD sreod pg P S L0 O T EFES WELE preog Aopemboy goL
SISO
aeg “EEU aEY oy meg aeq EIEU) e Sy 1989 aimuapug SI0UpasT)
e DO pERIANL) wiyay-Guo e IR AL wsapGuon A
e ] LN Lel TR | Jo topy 1 v PaTCyInYyg
| BN iz JUAN Y Junourny
Jpar] wag-Buoq qar] wisg-GuoT
PLOT 'L dE0Quanag jo sy SL07 "LE Jaguwasan jo sy
{atmtng) perreg L b
LT P A ) [ TARCRCTS B (U CTRCR T I R

(o

MOLLHO 0 MO

R SN L R cf EA T R o |
TR N SRR AR P IRTR RN NI [ NI PR PRI (12 12

W 10 Y |
bt

1



(oo 1og'9ze 1502 - G6E 294 } Z18'6.E 822 000'000'0L2 210,
¥SI'0vP Ll G0l BSLvPr Ll 000'00Z'281 UoWIWOY
]

g G6E'L0E 56£°/9¢ .“ (yoo1g Aunseaa))
5e0'98Y'L Z56'C LE0'GEY'L 000'000°0k uowwog [ewsds
000'00G'SE 000'005'52 ono'o0g'le a pauajald
V21 sav's LZ1'S8Y'9 LEL'GEP' 0 pauajsid

!
005'689'81 005'689'81 BLE'PLLEY A pauejald
000'00%' ) 000'00%' )L 000'00%'L (o015 Anseas)) |
VpaLeisld i
sIBYIO saafodwg saey Ag suondwapay uonden j@aus pazuoLny anss) jo sl .H."
pue 's1a2I0 pleH saueys 'syfiy Jepo | @ouejeg paieRy salByg !
‘siojoan] JO Jaquunpy PUB UDISIBALOD) JEPUN UMOUS Jo laquinpy
sjuelepy suondo | se Bupuelsing
1o} panasay pue panss|
SaleyS 0 JaquInp [Sodeys Jo Jagquiny
) - h ==

: HOO0LS IVLIdYD M 3TNA3HOS
NOILYHOJHOD NOILONYLSNOD TVNOILVN 3NIddITIHd

102 ‘L sequiada( Jo sy




PHILIPPINE NATIONAL CONSTRUCTION CORPORATION

Framework for the Preparalion and Presentation of Finoncial Statements

Concepiual Fromework Prhgse A; Objsclives and gualitalive
characteristics W

FFRSs Fractice Statement Monagement Commentary

Fhilippine Financial Reporting Standards

FFRS 1 Firs-lime Adoption of Philippine Fnancial Reporling
(Revised)  |Siondards J

Arnendments 1o PFRS 1| and PAS 27: Cost of an
lrvestment in a Subsidiory, Jointly Controlled Entity or

Associale ; 3

amendments o PFRS 1: Additional Exempfions for First-

time Adopters

Amendment to PFES 1: Umited Exemplion from
Comporative PFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time Adopters

amendments to PFRS 1: Savere Hyperinfiotion and
Femaoval of Fixed Date for Fst-time Adoplers

:5"'] | Arnencments to PFRS 1: Government Loons N
T

|PFRS 2 Shore-based Payment

Amendments 1o PFRS 2 Vesting Conditions and

Concelialions

Amendments fo PFRS 2 Group Cash-seftled $hare-

based Poyment Transactions

PFRS 3 Business Combinations
{quisn d}
PFRS 4 Irswance Conlracts

Amandments 1o PAS 39 and PFES 4: Financial Guoraniee

Controcls

FFRS 5 Mon-curent Assels Held for Sale and Discontinued

Cperotions

| FFRE & coigrotion for and Bealuation of Mineral Resources

pe

! BFRS 7 rirancial insiroments: Disclosures ¥

i

—

L
-

b

A ks =




Amenaments 1o PAS 32 and PFRS 7; Reclassiicafion of

Financiol Assels

Arnendments o PAS 37 and PFRS 7: Reclossification of

Finoncial Assets - Effective Date aond Transition

1Amendz~ne nis to PFRS 7: Improving Disclosures about

Financial iInsfruments

amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Transfers of

Financial Assets

Amendments to PFRS 7; Disclosures = Offsetting Financial
Assels and Fnancial Uabiifies

amendments to PFRS 7: Mondatory Effective Date of

L

FFRS % and Transition Disclosures

PFRS 8 Operafing Seaments

FERS 9 financial Instrumenits
Aamendments to PFRS9: Mandatory Etfective Date of
PFRS 9 and Transilion Dischosures

FFRS 10* Comsolidated Finoncial Slatemenis

PFRS 11" Joint Arcngements

PFRE 12* Cisclosure of Interests in Other Enfities

FFRS 13"

LIH;T Vaiue Measurement

Fhilippine Accounting Standards

l PAES ] Fresentolion of Anonciol Statements

pineviec Amendment 1o PAS 1: Copital Disclosures
Amenaments 1o PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puitable Financicl
Irsiruments and Obligalions Ansing on Licudation
Amendments to PAS 1. Presentation of tems of Other
Comgprehensive Income

| FAS 2 Invventories

FAS T Statement of Cash Flows

IPAS B Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates

| and Emors

! PAS 10 Evenis oiter ihe Reporfing Period

!

|PAS 11 Construction Contracts




FAS 12 Income Tazes
asmendment to PAS 12 - Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underfying Assels ’

Pas & Properly. Plant and Equipment

FAS 17 Leases

FAS 1B Revenue

PAS 1% Ermployee Benefits
Amendments to PAS 19; Actuarial Gains and Losses,
Group Plons and Disclosuras

PAS 1% Ermployvee Benefits

[Amended)® .

FA% 20 Accounting for Govemmeni Grants and Diselosure of

| Govemmeant Assistance

PAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rafas

Amendrnent: Met Invesiment in a Farelgn Operation
[ FAS 23 Borowing Casts

(Revised)

PAS 24 Related Parfy Disclosures

(Revised)

PAG 24 Accounting and Reparing by Refirement Benefit Plans

PAS 27 Consclidated and Separate Financial Statements

PAS 27 feporale Fnoncial Statements

{Amended)*

FAS 28 Invesiments In Associates

|Pas 28 Irvestments in Associates and Joint Ventures

[Amended)®

PAS 2% Financial Reperting in Hypernfiationary Economies

FAS 31 inferast in Soint Ventures

PAS 32 Francial irstruments: Disclosure and Presentatisn

Amenarmants to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttabie Bnancial
c=nd Obligalions Afsing on Uguidation

mrtry e e




Amendment fo PAS 32 Classificafion of Rights Issues

Amendments fo PAS 32 Offsetting Financiol Assets and

Financiol Liokilities

PAS 33

PAS 34

Eomings per Share

Interim Financial Beporting

FAS 24

Impairment of Assels

% PAS 37
—

Pravisions, Confingent Liobiffies ond Contingent Assets

] £ | £ <

PAS 38

Intangible Assels

FAS 37

Fingncial Instruments: Recognition and Measuwement

Amendments o PAS 37 Transition and Inltial Recognition

-

af Financial Assets and Financial Uabilities

Arrendments to PAS 39; Cash Flow Hedge Accounting

ol Forecos! inlragroup Transactions

Armendmenis to PAS 39: The Fair Vialue Oplion

Ameandments to PAS 32 and PFRS 4; Anancial Guarantee

Confracts

Amendments io PAS 32 and PFRS 7: Reclassification of

Financial Assets

Amendments o PAS 32 and PFRS 7: Reclossificalion of

Financial Assels — Efective Dote and Transition

Armendments fo Philppine Infenpretation IFRIC-S and
PAS 39: Embedded Derivatives

Amendment fo PAS 3% Bigible Hedged Hems

| FAS 40
|

Investmeni Property

| Pas 41

Agricuiure

Philippine Interpretations

[FRIC 1

!

Chorges in Existing Decommissioning, Resforation and
Sirnfar Liokilties

IFRIC 2

hembers' Shore in Co-operative Entifies and Simikar

Insiruments

IFRIC 4

Celermining Whether an Amangement Contgins o Lease

IFRIC 5

Rights to interests arising from Decommissioning,
Eeslorafion Pr‘-d Erwironmental Rehobiifation Funds

-
o




- PLE o e [ g ] e el B T i s IR T

¥
LR L

hhs T s i i
IFRIC & Liabilities arsing from Pordicipating in o Specific Markef -
Woste Electrical and Electronic Equipment W
IFRIC 7 Applying the Restalement Approach under PAS 29
Financial Reporfing in Hypernflofionary Economiss v
FRIC B jcope of FFRS 2 ol
IFRIC % Reassesment of Embedded Denvatives o
| R
| Amendments to Philippine Interpretafion IFRIC-% and
| FaS 39 Embedded Derivatives J
IFRIC 10 Interim Finoncial Reporting and impaiment
IFRIC 11 PFRS 2- Group and Treasury Share Transactions ) :
IFRIC 12 fervice Concession Arangements & Y
IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalfy Programmes W
IFRIC 14 The Lirrii on a Defined Benefit Assed, Minimum Funding
Fequirermnenits ond her Interacfion -y
ﬁ.:.rw erndmanis to Phiippine Interpretalions IFRIC- 14,
Frepoymeants of o Minimwm Funding Reguirement +
IFRIC 14 { medges of o Net Investment in a Forelgn Operation W
:.FR.C 17 ._ srmotions of Non-cash Assels fo Cwners al
LIFREC 13 | Tromsiee oF Assets from Customers W
FREC 1Y | Btmg asming Bnancial Liakilifies with Equity Instrurments W
FRIC 29 | irocing Costs in fhe Production Phase of a Suface
i d
-7 aracuction of the Euro ¥
55C-10 Sovermmant Assistance - No Specific Relation to
Srarating Activities )
.12 | Zznigidotion - Special Purpase Entities v
| #rendment to SIC - 12: Scope of SIC 12 W
i 5
c-13 santly Confrolied Enfities - Nan-Monelary Confributions
oy Yenturers v
5iC-15 Operaling Leases - Incentives v
| -2
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SIC-25 ncome Taxes - Changes in the Tax Stalus of an Entity or
its Shoreholders

sic-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Irvehing the
Lagaol Form of o Ledse

s1C-2% Lervice Concession Arrangements: Disclosures.

51C-31 ! Revenue - Barter Transactions Invahing Adveriising
Services

L'.n'.r:ngi.b]e Assits - Web Site Costs
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PHILIPPINE NATIONAL CONSTRUCTION CORPORATION = e

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICIT)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

iefict, balance at beginning of year (8,333,090,582)
i adjustments (1,201,185):

il realization of revaiuation surplus 959,251
D balance at beginning of year, as adjusted (8,333,322,526)
Met Income 74,743,821
Deficit, balance at end of year : _ (8,258,578 6035)

As discussed in Note 16 of the 2015 Audited of the Financial Statements, dividends (in arrears) on
_~cumulatve preferred shares are not recognized in the books due to the Board of Directors' non-
‘eclaration of dividends in view of the Company's deficit of P8.259 billion as of December 31, 2015.
Q “uch action of the PNCC Board is supported by Article X1, Section 11.01 of the Amended Corporate By-
_aws which provides that "Dividends maybe declared annually or oftener as the Board may determine..

The Board of Directors may declare dividends only from the surplus profits of the Corporation.”




PHILIPPINE NATIONAL CONSTRUCTION CORPORATION
FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS

2015 2014
: {Audited) {As restated)

1 Current/Liquidity Ratios:

Current Ratio 012 0.09

Cuick Asset Ralio 012 0.09
2 Solvency Ralios,

Debl to Assels 99.33% 101.18%

Debt to Equity Ratio 14867.87%  -8554.95%
3 Asset o Equity Ratio 14067.87% -B454.95%
4 Inlerest Rate Coverage Ratio 1.555 0.152

5 Profitability Ratios:
Return on Assets = 1.80% -1.76%
Return on Equity 269.48% 148.89%
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\IAP SHOWING THE RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN AND AMONG THE COMPANIES IN THE GROUF, ITS ;
ULTIMATE PARENT COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
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